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2023 Annual Report    

Office of Sponsored Programs (OSP)   

Northwestern Oklahoma State University   

Office of Sponsored Programs Mission Statement   

The primary mission of the Office of Sponsored Programs (OSP) 
is to provide support to the Northwestern Oklahoma State 
University (NWOSU) community in the acquisition and 
administration of externally funded projects for research, teaching 
and service. The Office of Sponsored Programs strives to ensure 
the responsible stewardship of research funding, oversees the 
submission of proposals and negotiates the acceptance of awards 
with professionalism and collaboration. The Offices of Sponsored 
Programs uses the Northwestern Strategic Plan as a model to 
ensure grant projects are aligned with the directions and 
objectives of the University.   
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Northwestern Oklahoma State University Strategic Plan 2022-2027  

Office of Sponsored Programs Response to the Strategic Plan FY23   

(The full plan can be viewed here: http://www.nwosu.edu/strategic-plan)   

Mission                                                                                                            

Northwestern Oklahoma State University provides quality educational and cultural 

opportunities to learners with diverse needs by cultivating ethical leadership and 

service, critical thinking and fiscal responsibility.     

Vision  We aspire to be a vibrant and innovative regional university of choice whose 

students, faculty, staff, and alumni succeed and lead in their academic, professional, 

cultural, and service endeavors.   

Values                                                                                                                    

Academic Excellence Northwestern will provide the best possible educational 

experience for every student.                                                                                              

• Focus on quality teaching and advising                                                                            

• Respond effectively to the learning needs of each student                                               

• Embrace the role of technology in the educational process                                                         

• Promote opportunities for teaching and learning outside of the classroom   

Accessibility Northwestern is committed to the accessibility of its programs and 

services.                                                                                                                                             

• Embrace our mission as a multiple site regional university                                                             

• Continue working to maintain affordability                                                                                  

• Seek new methods to deliver programs and services to our constituencies    

Community Northwestern will create a sense of community that extends beyond 

campus boundaries.                                                                                                             

• Seek partnerships and initiatives that will improve the quality of life for area residents 

• Promote institutional and individual service to others                                                      

• Embrace our role in a global society        

Diversity Northwestern will respect the individual rights of all persons.                          

• Value the differences in every individual                                                                         

• Promote the expression of differing opinions and beliefs                                                               

• Appreciate the culture and backgrounds of each person                                                  

• Treat every individual with respect      

  

http://www.nwosu.edu/strategic-plan
http://www.nwosu.edu/strategic-plan
http://www.nwosu.edu/strategic-plan
http://www.nwosu.edu/strategic-plan
http://www.nwosu.edu/strategic-plan
http://www.nwosu.edu/strategic-plan
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Responsibility Northwestern will maintain the highest levels of ethical standards and 

accountability.                                                                                                                     

• Act with integrity and accept responsibility                                                                                 

• Use our resources in the most effective and efficient manner                                           

• Conduct business in an atmosphere of transparency 

Strategic Direction 1                                                                                                 

Academic Excellence  

Northwestern will provide the necessary resources to empower faculty as they design 

and deliver academic programs that include meaningful content and experiences, and to 

prepare graduates for successful careers and service to society.     

Goal 1: Gather and provide meaningful data and input to drive academic             

decision-making.                                                                                                                 

• Ensure program assessment review to enhance academic programs                                

• Maintain university and department/division accreditation that leads to an improved 

academic experience                                                                                                           

• Evaluate existing and new academic programs in correlation to occupational needs in 

the state and region                                                                                                              

• Provide opportunities for interaction with discipline experts and outside consultants, 

where appropriate                                                                                                                          

• Collect, disseminate, and share academic data to guide programs                                     

• Ensure consistency and instructional quality across delivery modes   

The OSP compiles data relevant to grant proposals and reports and acts as a liaison for 

consultants and contractors paid for via grants that all support academic decision-

making. 

Goal 2: Provide increased opportunities for, and access to, meaningful professional 

development.                                                                                                                       

• Encourage faculty-driven professional development                                                        

• Seek new resources for professional development opportunities                                            

• Enrich the portfolio process through meaningful professional development                            

• Expand professional development and activities to meet the social, physical, and 

mental health needs of students, faculty, and staff                                                               

• Create more opportunities for development of leadership skills and roles                       

• Increase professional development focused on advising that leads to student success  
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The OSP monitors dozens of websites, newsletters, and other resources for professional 

development opportunities related to Goal 2. In FY23, 92 professional development and 

grant opportunities were forwarded to relevant faculty, staff, and administration. The 

OSP also supports the Student Support Services, Title III Strengthening Institutional 

Programs, and both Upward Bound grants staff that use best practices to improve 

student success. 

Goal 3: Enhance the use of existing and emerging instructional modalities to meet the 

needs of all students.                                                                                                           

• Achieve General Education course access across all modalities                                      

• Prepare faculty and students to manage diverse learning technologies                                      

• Research and enhance institution-wide instructional technologies across all modalities  

• Maximize the use of existing technology for outreach to students                                               

• Gather and utilize data on instruction through all modalities                                           

• Explore new opportunities to ensure accessibility for academic success   

The OSP monitors opportunities weekly for grants to improve and expand campus 

technology and access and assists faculty and staff who write outside grants to improve 

on Goal 3. Recent projects include the Title III LASSO Center’s use of SignalVine to 

enhance staff and faculty to student communications.  

Goal 4: Create a culture of employee and student collaboration that leads to enhanced 

student experience and success.                                                                                          

• Enhance the educational experience by extending educational learning opportunities 

beyond the classroom (service learning, leadership activities, co-curricular activities, 

experiential learning, and partnerships)                                                                              

• Provide university personnel appropriate resources to advise students more effectively  

• Implement and evaluate strategies to increase the number of students who declare a 

major within the first 30 credit hours                                                                                     

• Track and measure graduation cohort progress to determine the need for intervention            

• Expand mentoring programs to enhance student success 

The OSP director offers the UNIV-5500 HTC practicum designed to allow students the 

opportunity to apply their skills and knowledge within a selected area within heritage 

tourism and conservation. The practicum is completed within a community-based, 

commercial, or governmental organization. Students are required to observe and 

participate in a job-related capacity under supervision as part of their practicum 

experience. The OSP offers administrative support to grant directors whose programs 

provide professional development and programs, including Go2Knowledge and others, 

for Goal 4.   



6  

Strategic Direction 2                                                                                                

Campus Culture and Environment Northwestern will provide a campus culture and 

environment to attract and retain students and employees.                                                

Goal 1: Provide a safe, sustainable, and aesthetically pleasing campus environment.             

• Continue to improve learning and living environments within residential facilities           

• Develop funding sources for major capital project renovations (Herod Hall, mall area, 

outdoor recreation areas, outdoor classroom)                                                                     

• Foster sustainability efforts within the Northwestern community (recycling, clean-up 

days, green initiatives)                                                                                                        

• Increase technological infrastructure to improve the efficiency of campus functions     

• Review and implement energy cost-saving opportunities across campus facilities         

• Explore opportunities to enhance physical accessibility of campus facilities                  

• Provide an environment that supports the physical, social, and mental health of 

employees and students                                                                                                       

• Improve infrastructure and resources to support campus safety    

Since 2017, the OSP director has transitioned 90% of paper documents, including those 

for Institutional Review Board (IRB) and Institutional Animal Care & Use Committee 

(IACUC) proposals to electronic submission and adheres to cost saving by turning off 

unused lights, computers, and other equipment as well as recycling ink cartridges for all 

three campus, which included 106 in FY23. The OSP constantly monitors funding 

opportunities for renovations, physical accessibility improvements, and campus safety 

efforts. Current funding searches include upgrades to the outdated electric systems in 

the library and American Disability Act grants. The OSP director is active in campus 

safety measures, a member of the Professional Staff Council, and promotes the use of 

native plants on campuses that require less water and maintenance.    

The OSP director chairs the IRB and IACUC committees serving as the primary 

reviewer on exempt proposals and first reviewer for expedited and full reviews. The 

OSP acts as a training source for faculty researchers, faculty advisors, and student 

researchers offering a training session and a hands-on workshop as requested by 

advisors. During FY23, 27 DNP students and 12 undergraduate psychology students 

attended an in-person or Zoom IRB training. In addition, the OSP director met with two 

students individually for project guidance. One natural sciences faculty member 

attended the one-on-one session with her student.  
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Goal 2: Provide opportunities for campus leaders and all constituencies to collaborate in 

university governance.                                                                                                         

• Continue and enhance opportunities for all university constituencies to participate in 

decision making                                                                                                                   

• Publicize opportunities for, achievements resulting from, collaboration in the 

university decision-making process                                                                                         

• Encourage employee and student involvement and leadership across campus and 

community                                                                                                                                

• Increase student representation across campuses within committees, student 

organizations, and leadership efforts   

The OSP director is a Professional Staff Council member and attends all annual budget 

hearings to assist in funding opportunity searches and potential partnerships and 

collaborations.  

Goal 3: Provide an environment that fosters and embraces an appreciation for human 

diversity.                                                                                                                              

• Offer academic experiences and other opportunities that meet the needs of a diverse 

campus                                                                                                                                 

• Ensure that hiring practices are inclusive and foster diversity within our faculty and 

staff                                                                                                                                       

• Create a campus culture that is inclusive of all students and employees                                  

• Provide learning experiences and professional development for students and 

employees that enhance the understanding of diversity   

Goal 4: Create and implement new marketing strategies and avenues to enhance the 

awareness of educational experiences and achievements at the university.                                  

• Increase brand awareness within and beyond northwest Oklahoma                                             

• Determine and implement new avenues within digital marketing to reach potential 

students                                                                                                                                       

• Utilize alumni relationships to produce an advertising campaign establishing processes 

to analyze results from the campaign                                                                                  

• Research and implement more effective communication channels among all 

stakeholders                                                                                                                                

• Develop a practice of institutional branding for employee- and student-generated 

material (workshop PowerPoints, etc.)                                                                               

• Increase awareness of media coverage of employee and student achievement                          

• Review and redesign the university website 

Strategic Direction 3                                                                                                       

University Finance and Budget Northwestern will provide the necessary resources to 

advance the mission of the university.     
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Goal 1: Evaluate salary and benefit structure to recruit and retain quality employees.      

• Establish a comparison group to identify and reach target average salaries for each 

faculty rank                                                                                                                          

• Determine fair market value pay rate ranges for all staff positions and set targets to 

reach them                                                                                                                           

• Continue to evaluate fringe benefit opportunities for all employees                                            

• Evaluate and adjust, as appropriate, irregular pay and part-time employee pay                         

• Evaluate and adjust, as appropriate, academic program staffing needs based on 

enrollment trends   

Goal 2: Partner with the Northwestern Foundation to enhance the university experience. 

• Prepare and launch Northwestern’s second comprehensive capital campaign                 

• Assist the Foundation in increasing the quantity of planned giving pledges                    

• Assist the Foundation in increasing alumni giving                                                           

• Increase continuing student scholarships   

Goal 3:  Create opportunities for grant participation, and explore new partnerships to 

improve the university experience for all stakeholders.                                                      

• Increase faculty and staff participation in grant-seeking activities                                               

• Increase the number of outside grant funding efforts by faculty and staff                                      

• Participate in financially beneficial consortiums and partnerships with other entities          

• Ensure the success of ongoing grant programs                                                                 

• Partner with external entities to promote growth and development • Actively engage 

with elected officials to advance the mission of the university   

The OSP and NWOSU administration created and promote grant writing and grant 

awarded stipends to faculty and staff who apply for outside grants, and the OSP director 

supports any employee interested in doing so. That support includes eligibility review, 

completing the administrative paperwork, and proposal review/critique if requested. In 

additional, the OSP supports existing grant directors and their staff with compliance 

issues, budget change requests, and other details whenever needed. The OSP maintains 

a list of funding needs and wants and forward potential opportunities to relevant faculty 

and staff and constantly researches funding and partnership opportunities.  
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Goal 4: Evaluate and revise strategies that encourage transparency to all constituents.     

• Continue to provide campus community opportunities for budget input                              

• Investigate and develop ways to report ongoing or completed projects and activities to 

stakeholders   

The OSP completes this annual report that is posted on the NWOSU website and sends 

planned proposals, grant proposal submissions, and awards notices to the Grants 

Oversight Committee (GOC). The purpose of the GOC is to promote faculty research 

efforts, faculty professional development, staff writing for outside grants, and student 

programs and evaluates proposals requesting grant funds, faculty professional 

development activities or student activities and programs insuring adherence to the 

university vision. 

Strategic Direction 4                                                                                                        

Student Retention and Enrollment Northwestern will develop policies and practices that 

foster a university-wide culture of recruitment, improving retention and increasing 

graduation rates.   

Goal 1: Ensure a culture of accountability for recruitment, retention and graduation of 

Northwestern students.                                                                                                        

• Seek participation from all campus constituencies in recruitment and retention efforts 

to ensure accountability and tracking                                                                                  

• Efficiently track and disseminate cohort data to improve graduation rate of students 

within six years                                                                                                                            

• Review and strengthen Student Enrollment Management Plan                                             

• Meet the goals of the Student Enrollment Management Plan for such groups as 

freshman, transfer, international, concurrent, graduate, and minority students                             

• Develop strategies and practices that will increase overall enrollment for the university 

• Ensure student success data and information is updated and communicated   

The OSP supports faculty and staff in these efforts by monitoring and assisting in grant 

proposal and implementation compliance and collecting and reviewing data to show 

need in grant proposals for students, including low-income, first generation, at-risk, and 

other factors that affect retention and graduation rates.  

Goal 2: Improve scholarship opportunities for continuing students.                                          

• Explore a merit-based versus need-based scholarship model                                           

• Investigate scholarship opportunities aimed at retaining students in areas of critical 

occupations for the state                                                                                                       

• Explore increasing the scholarship cap                                                                                   

• Extend graduate assistant positions across academic disciplines with graduate 

programs   
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Goal 3: Implement policies and practices that improve enrollment and retention.                      

• Upgrade technology that will enhance student experience and satisfaction                            

• Improve enrollment and engagement processes for incoming freshman, transfer, 

graduate and nontraditional students to positively impact retention                                          

• Complete implementation of electronic degree audit process through the Colleague 

system                                                                                                                                  

• Enhance and increase campus life opportunities to impact retention                                      

• Restructure the first-year experience course   

The OSP researches opportunities and supports grant programs to enhance technology 

and accessibility for faculty, staff, and students. FY23 examples include working with 

Title III LASSO staff to overcome our manual degree audit process that we believed 

would be improved by the Colleague installation. The grant proposal notes that we will 

consistently monitor each LASSO participant’s forward progress post-degree 

declaration. LASSO staff now assist the Registrar staff with this process until a 

technical fix is found.  

Goal 4: Enhance services to better meet the needs of a diverse population.                          

• Provide services and opportunities to support a diverse faculty and staff                         

• Seek opportunities to assist first-generation and low-income students                                    

• Improve technology that will help meet ADA accommodations for students                               

• Identify and address the unique needs of various student populations 

The OSP provides administrative, compliance support, and monitors funding 

opportunities to student support services and grant staff to achieve Goal 4.  
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    FY23 

AWARDS   
  
  

          

Title     Principal 

Investigator   
Agency   Div./School   Dept.   

Multi-Year  
Grants/Grant 

Year  

FY23  
Award/Budget  

Boren Mentoring 

Grant Initiative 

Opportunity Grant 

Jennifer 

Oswald 

Oklahoma 

Foundation for 

Excellence 

Professional 

Studies 

Education 2023     $1,500 

Earth Day Pre-K 

Activities Grant 

Steven Mackie Park Avenue 

Thrift-Enid 

    N/A Student 

Group- 

C.O.R.E.  

2023      $432 

Swipe Out 

Hunger-Campus 

Cabinet 

Angelia Case Swipe Out Hunger       N/A      N/A October 2022     $3,000 

Campus Cabinet 

Food Pantry 

Angelia Case Alva 

Changemakers 

         N/A      N/A January 2023      $1,466 

Northwest  
Oklahoma  

Concert Series  

Lawanna 

Newell  
Oklahoma Arts 

Council  
Arts & Sciences  Fine Arts      2022-2023     $6,500  

Bill Johnson  
Correctional 

Center  

Jeff   
McAlpin   

Oklahoma   
Department of 

Corrections   

Arts & Sciences             2023   $438,505 

Distribution and  
Quality 

of Iodine  

     Jason   
Wickham   

OCAST   Arts & Sciences    Natural  
Sciences   

2022-2024    $11,860   

Heartland BEST 

Robotics   
  Tim Maharry   Charles Morton   

Share Trust   
Foundation   

Arts & Sciences   Mathematics   2022-2024  
($30,000 Total 

Award)   

  $10,000   

LS- 
OKAMPSTEM   

Tim Maharry   National Science 

Foundation   
Arts & Sciences   Mathematics   2020-2025  

($45,000 

Total)   

   $9,000   

Early   
Settlement   
Alternative 

Dispute  

Part-Time 

Coordinator  
Administrative   
Office of the 

Courts  

Public Service    Annually-  
Calendar Year  

   $32,650  

 

CW PEP    
(Child Welfare 

Professional   
Enhancement 

Program)   

Kylene   
Rehder 

Oklahoma  
Department of  
Human Services  

Arts & Sciences   Social Work      2022-2023     $33,995  

Higher Education 

Prevention 

Services-

Stimulants 

Taylor 

Wilson 

Oklahoma 

Department of 

Mental Health & 

Substance Abuse 

Services 

Student 

Services 

NWOSU 

Counseling 

Services 

2022-2023    $50,000 

Higher Education 

Prevention 

Services-Opioids 

Taylor 

Wilson 

Oklahoma 

Department of 

Mental Health & 

Substance Abuse 

Services 

Student 

Services 

NWOSU 

Counseling 

Services 

2022-2023    $50,000 
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Higher Education 

Prevention 

Services-Suicide 

Prevention 

Taylor 

Wilson 

Oklahoma 

Department of 

Mental Health & 

Substance Abuse 

Services 

Student 

Services 

NWOSU 

Counseling 

Services 

2022-2023       $5,000 

TRIO-Student  
Support Services 

(SSS)   

Tosh Miller  U.S. Department 

of Education   
Student 

Services   
  9/1/22-8/31/23 

(2020-2025)   
    $261,888    

  

Title III LASSO 

Center 

Lisa Cline U.S. Department 

of Education 

Student 

Services 

 10/1/22-9/30/23 

(2021-2026 

    $440,024 

TRIO-Upward  
Bound Classic   

Jaunita 

Dotson   
U.S. Department 

of Education   
Student 

Services   
  6/1/22-5/31/22 

(2022-2027)  
      $309,505   

TRIO-Upward 

Bound Math 

and Science   

Jaunita 

Dotson   
U.S. Department 

of Education   
Student 

Services   
  9/1/22-8/31/23 

(2022-2027)  
      $297,601  

Online 

Consortium of 

Oklahoma 

Technology 

Pilot Grant 

James Bell Oklahoma State 

Regents for 

Higher 

Education 

    Faculty 

Development 

  N/A 2022-2023 $5,000 

Pressbooks 

Implementation 

Support Funding 

James Bell Oklahoma State 

Regents for 

Higher Education 

Faculty 

Development 

N/A 2022-2023 $1,500 

Micro-Credentials 

& Rapid Re-

Employment 

Initiative Funds 

James Bell Oklahoma State 

Regents for 

Higher Education 

Faculty 

Development 

N/A 2022-2023 

 

(Two grants @ 

$40,000 each) 

$80,000 

 

 

Micro-Credentials 

& Rapid Re-

Employment 

Initiative Funds 

James Bell Oklahoma State 

Regents for 

Higher Education 

Faculty 

Development 

N/A   2022-2023 $15,000 

       
 

 Total:     $2,064,426 

  



13  

 

Sources of Funding 2015-2023:  Number of Projects 
 

Source  

  

FY 

2015  

 

FY  

2016  

 

FY  

2017  

 

FY 

2018  

  

FY 

2019  

 

FY 

2020  

  

FY 

2021^  

 

FY 

2022  

 

FY 

2023 

 

Federal  9  8  7  9*  8  8  4  9  
       
   5 

 

State  8  10  8  6  6  8        8  6  
    

12 

Private/ 

Other  
 12  12  9  9      12    5**  

             

 

     4       1  

 
 
   5 

 

TOTAL  29  30  24  24  26  21     16  16  
         
22 

^ Covid 19 Pandemic  *7 + 2 two pending applications  **includes MASH Camp, now endowed  
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Entity Sources of Funding 2019-2023 
 

  
  

Source    FY19      FY20      FY21   

  
  

  FY22  

 

 

FY23 

Federal   $955,847*   $2,446,846.74   

  
  
$866,090  
  
  

  
  
 
$9,811,332  

 
 
 
$1,318,018 

State  $605,546   $507,587   

  
  
$582,957  
  
  

  
  
 
$509,107  

 
 
 
$730,010 

Private/ 
Other  

$55,750        $30,500   
   
  $31,000  

  

  
 

   $10,000  

 
 

$16,398 
 
 

 

Total  
 

$1,617,143*  
 

$2,984,933.74   

  
 
 
$1,480,047  
  
  

  
 

  
$10,330,439  

 
 
 
$2,064,426 

*USDA DLT grant funding adjusted from $231,983 total grant amount in FY18 to    

$73,313 annual funding amount in FY19 report.  
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NWOSU Sponsored Programs  

Grant Descriptions  

Bill Johnson Correctional Center (BJCC) - $438,505   
NWOSU currently contracts with the Bill Johnson Correctional Center and the Oklahoma 

Department of Corrections to provide drug and alcohol treatment to inmates. Full-time treatment 

counselors as well as student interns provide treatment. The director of the contract is Mr. Jeff 

McAlpin, Instructor of Sociology/Criminal Justice.   

Boren Mentoring Grant Initiative-Opportunity Grant-$1,500                        
This grant provides programming, training, and materials support for existing K-12 mentoring 

programs in Oklahoma. Jennifer Oswald is the grant director.   

CW PEP (Child Welfare Professional Enhancement Program)-$33,995    
The CW PEP grant is funded by a multi-agency partnership to enhance and support Oklahoma’s 

public child welfare workforce. It offers students financial support for college in exchange for a 

specified employment position in child welfare. Dr. Kylene Rehder, Associate Professor of 

Social Work and Chair, Department of Social Work, is the director on this grant.    

Distribution and Quality Iodine - $11,860   
This grant, sponsored by OCAST (Oklahoma Center for the Advancement of Science &   

Technology), funds an internship between Iofina and NWOSU creating an opportunity for an 

NWOSU student to gain hands-on experience in the field. The intern(s) sponsored by this grant 

builds a database that maps out the distribution and quantity of iodine and other constituents in 

various brine water aquifers in northwest Oklahoma. Dr. Jason Wickham, Associate Professor of 

Chemistry, serves as the director of this project.   

Early Settlement Alternative Dispute-$32,650   
The ESAD program is funded by the (Oklahoma) Administration Office of the Courts via a 

contract with NWOSU and is housed on the Enid campus. Ms. Jennifer Grimes serves as the 

director. The position was changed to a part-time position in FY20.   

Heartland BEST Robotics -$10,000   
Heartland BEST is hosted on the campus of NWOSU and sends the winning teams to a regional 

competition. The grant is divided in-house to fund $10,000 annually for 2019, 2020, and 2021. 

Dr. Tim Maharry, Professor of Mathematics and Chair of the Mathematics and Computer 

Science Department, oversees the grant.   

Higher Education Prevention Services-$100,000                                                         

These two $50,000 grant programs assist our student services and counseling staff in addressing 

opioid and stimulant misuse on all three campuses. Ms. Taylor Wilson is the grant director.  
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LS-OKAMP-STEM-$9,000 (The Oklahoma Louis Stokes Alliance for Minority Participation)    

A grant in cooperation with Oklahoma State University and the National Science Foundation to 

encourage participation of minority students in the areas of science, mathematics, engineering 

and technology.  Dr. Tim Maharry, Professor of Mathematics and Chair of the Mathematics and 

Computer Science Department, is the grant coordinator.   

Northwest Oklahoma Concert Series-$6,500  
The Northwest Oklahoma Concert Series (NWOCS), an organization that seeks to bring cultural 

performances and entertainment to northwest Oklahoma. This grant pays the expenses to bring 

four acts to the NWOSU Alva campus. Ms. Lawanna Newell, Instructor of Music, oversees the 

NWOCS.  

Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education Micro-Credentials and Rapid 

Re-Employment Initiative Grants-$80,000                                                       

These grants provided professional development opportunities via the UpskillOK program, a 

statewide framework for increasing high-demand career skills sought by employers for Oklahoma 

Critical Occupations. Two grants at $40,000 each. These grants serve faculty and students. Dr. 

James Bell serves as the director.  

Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education Micro-Credentials and Rapid 

Re-Employment Initiative Grants-$15,000                                                                
This grant provided professional development specifically for Corrections and Detention Officers 

micro-credentials.    
 

Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education Online Consortium of 

Oklahoma Technology Pilot Grant-$5,000                                                             
These funds paid the Quality Matters access fee and training for faculty development for best 

online practices. Dr. James Bell serves as the director. 

 

Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education Pressbooks Implementation  

Support Grant-$1,500                                                                                                      
These funds were used to match grants that OSRHE gave directly to faculty who took the Open 

Educational Resources (OER 101) orientation course ($50), who adopted an existing OER for use in a 

course ($500), or who developed ancillary OER materials for a course ($500). The first was matched at 

100% ($50), while the others were matched at 20% ($100). Dr. James Bell serves as the director. 

 

Student Support Services (SSS) - $261,888   
Funded by the U.S. Department of Education, this program provides support, resources, & 

information necessary for success, with the hopes of reaching student graduation. The program 

aims to employ a holistic program that facilitates and customizes services that address the 

academic & non-academic needs of participants as each level of their college experience. The 

participants eligible for this grant are first generation, low income and students with disabilities.  

Mr. Tosh Miller is the director of this grant.    
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Title III LASSO Center-$440,024 

Funded by the U.S. Department of Education, the Title III LASSO Center project conducts 

activities necessary to yield both short-term and long-term impact on retention, student success, 

and institutional stability goals with a focus on increasing first-time full-time student retention, 

six-year graduation rates, and professional development. Ms. Lisa Cline serves as the director.   

TRIO-Upward Bound Classic (2022-2026) -$309,505   
From the U.S. Department of Education, this grant increases the academic and motivational 

levels of eligible enrollees so that such persons may complete secondary school and successfully 

pursue post-secondary educational programs. Five high schools in three northwest Oklahoma 

counties are targeted. The grant award is for five years and will total over $1,250,000.             

Ms. Jaunita Dotson is director of the grant.    

TRIO-Upward Bound Math & Science (2022-2026) – $297,601   
This grant, from the U.S. Department of Education, increases the academic and motivational 

levels of eligible enrollees with aptitudes in math and/or science so that such persons may 

complete secondary school and successfully pursue post-secondary educational programs. Five 

high schools in three northwest Oklahoma counties are targeted. The grant award is for five years 

and totals over $1,300,000. Ms. Jaunita Dotson is director of the grant.   
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Northwestern Oklahoma State University Strategic Plan 2016-2021 & 

OSP Response   

Office of Sponsored Programs Response to the Strategic Plan FY17   

Office of Sponsored Programs Response to the Strategic Plan FY18   

Office of Sponsored Programs Response to the Strategic Plan FY19  Office 

of Sponsored Programs Response to the Strategic Plan FY20          

Office of Sponsored Programs Response to the Strategic Plan FY21   

Office of Sponsored Programs Response to the Strategic Plan FY22                                         
  

Mission    

Northwestern provides quality educational and cultural opportunities to learners 

with diverse needs by cultivating ethical leadership and service, critical thinking, 

and fiscal responsibility.   

Vision   

We aspire to be a vibrant and innovative regional university of choice whose 

students, faculty, staff, and alumni succeed and lead in their academic, 

professional, cultural, and service endeavors.   

Academic Excellence   

Northwestern will provide the best possible educational experience for every student.   

• Focus on quality teaching and advising  

• Respond effectively to the learning needs of each student  

• Embrace the role of technology in the educational process  

• Promote opportunities for teaching and learning outside of the classroom  

Accessibility  

Northwestern is committed to accessibility of its programs and services.  

• Embrace our mission as a multiple site regional university  

• Continually work to maintain affordability  

• Seek new methods to deliver programs and services to our constituencies  

Community  

Northwestern will create a sense of community that extends beyond campus 

boundaries.  

• Seek partnerships and initiatives that will improve the quality of life for area        

residents  

• Promote institutional and individual service to others  

• Embrace our role in a global society  

Diversity  

Northwestern will respect the individual rights of all persons.  

• Value the differences in every individual  

• Promote the expression of differing opinions and beliefs  

• Appreciate the culture and backgrounds of each person  

• Treat every individual with respect  
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Responsibility  

Northwestern will maintain the highest levels of ethical standards and 

accountability.   

• Act with integrity and accept responsibility  

• Use our resources in the most effective and efficient manner  

• Conduct business in an atmosphere of transparency  

• Promote a culture of continuous improvement  

Strategic Direction 1   

Goal 1: Review all current academic programs with respect to their content, 
format of delivery, and mode of assessment.   

• Continue assessment of programs for relevant and rigorous content, effective 

delivery, appropriate measures of student learning, and logical sequencing.  

• Ensure that all accredited programs take necessary steps to continue to adhere to 

standards for national accreditation within their specified timelines.  

• Sharpen the career focus of all academic programs by mapping clear professional 

pathways, incorporating experiential learning opportunities (including 

internships), and increasing external links to the larger business and professional 

communities.  

• Comply with guidelines of the state and national Scaling Corequisite Initiative to 

address the needs of students at all academic levels.  

• Apply best practice strategies from Title III efforts to decrease below average 

performance and withdrawal rates in gateway courses.  

Goal 2: With faculty, mutually establish the expectation that each department and 
division will conduct an assessment of societal trends and needs, including 
prospective students’ interests that would necessitate a change of content and/or 
pedagogical approach.   

• Using national and regional demographic and employment data, review all 

academic programs to ensure consistency with the university’s mission, 

resources, and competitive position in the overall higher education context.  

• As appropriate, review at the department and division level, findings from 

consultations within the discipline and with external constituencies that would 

call for modifications to curriculum, assessment, and career counseling.  

Goal 3: Develop a system that will provide relevant data concerning school 
outcomes, internship opportunities and program points-of-pride to Northwestern 
constituencies.   

• Define relevant data and establish a mechanism for its timely and systematic 

collection and dissemination.  
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Goal 4: Increase participation in faculty professional development by improving 
communication about available resources.   

• Create timely and convenient opportunities for faculty members to exchange 

ideas and strategies in person or virtually. • Update and maintain the existing 

Blackboard faculty development site.  

• Include documented evidence of participation in on-campus or off-campus 

professional development as creditable activity in the annual faculty evaluation 

protocol.  

• Increase faculty development resources related to new delivery modes (e.g., 

online and hybrid).  

FY17 The OSP monitors many professional development and grant opportunities 

that are shared with the appropriate faculty and/or administration. Beginning in 

September 2017, the OSP is hosting quarterly “Grant Chat” meetings in person and 

via ITV as requested. The meetings are designed to allow for open discussion about 

funding needs, funding opportunities, and other related discussion.    

FY18 The OSP continues to monitor professional development and grant 

opportunities for faculty, staff, and/or administration. Grant Chat meetings 

notification were sent via email to faculty, staff, and administration. Meetings were 

held on 9-7-17 (two participants) and 12-7-17 (no participants) and the OSP 

Director was available 30 minutes before and after the meeting to accommodate 

anyone in class from 12-1pm. The 3-1-18 and 6-7-18 meetings were cancelled due 

to lack of interest. No additional meetings are scheduled.      

FY19 The OSP continues to monitor professional development and grant 

opportunities for faculty, staff, and administration and forward those opportunities 

via email.    

FY20 The OSP continues to monitor professional development and grant 

opportunities for faculty, staff, and administration and forward those opportunities 

via email. Thirty-five (35) opportunities were shared with relevant faculty, staff, 

and administrators in FY20. Sponsored Programs hosted the annual Council on 

Grantsmanship and Research on 10-4-2019 on the Enid campus.   

FY21 The OSP continues to monitor professional development and grant 

opportunities for faculty, staff, and administration and forward those opportunities 

via email. Fifty-nine (59) opportunities were shared with relevant faculty, staff, and 

administrators in FY21.  

FY22 The OSP continues to monitor professional development and grant 

opportunities for faculty, staff, and administration and forward those opportunities 

via email. Eighty-two (82) opportunities were shared with relevant faculty, staff, 

and administrators in FY22.   
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Goal 5: Maintain student advising as an integral part of a faculty member’s 
professional responsibility while strengthening the effectiveness of advising 
across the university.   

• Review and reconfigure as necessary advising training workshops and resources 

to encourage timely degree completion.  

• Maximize the use of existing technology and explore options for new technology 

for use in student academic advising.  

• Through effective advising of new students, increase the number of students who 

move promptly into credit-bearing courses.  

• Implement and evaluate strategies to increase the number of students who declare 

a major within their first 30 credit hours.  

Goal 6: Increase online course and other program offerings while ensuring 
rigorous standards and student learning outcomes. • Ensure consistency of 
instructional quality across all delivery modes.  

• Increase the number of General Education courses offered online.  

• Expand online learning orientation opportunities for students beyond those 

currently offered.  

• Evaluate and upgrade as needed the technology and other resources that support 

reliable and user-friendly online teaching and learning.  

• Complete implementation of Doctorate of Nursing Practice process by fall 2017.  

FY17 The OSP was recently part of a multi-faceted team that wrote and submitted 

the USDA Distance Learning grant proposal to expand ITV learning opportunities 

for several high schools, correctional facilities, NOWSU students, and a rural 

hospital.    

FY18 Northwestern received the USDA Distance Learning grant, and the OSP 

oversees the reimbursement requests and reporting.    

FY19 The OSP continues its support of the USDA DLT grant by completing the 

annual reporting requirements and submitting reimbursement requests.    

FY20 The OSP continues its support of the USDA DLT grant by completing the 

annual reporting requirements and submitting reimbursement requests. We will 

reapply for USDA DLT funding in FY21 or during the next grant cycle.   
   

FY21 The USDA grant obligations have been fulfilled, and the grant has been 

closed out. The OSP offers students Institutional Review Board trainings in-person, 

in the classroom, and via Zoom or other online platforms.  
  

FY22 The OSP continues to offer Institutional Review Board trainings and 

workshops one-on-one, in the classroom, and via Zoom or other online platforms.  
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Strategic Direction 2   

Northwestern will provide a high-quality educational experience for all students 

from time of first inquiry through graduation.   

The Student Experience   

Goal 1: Implement the principal recommendations of the recent Enrollment 
Management Report and Academy for Student Persistence and Completion.   

• Develop a data-driven branding initiative aimed at identifying the image of our 

product (in general and in terms of specific product features such as facilities, 

student life, technology, degree program offerings, etc.) in the mind of our 

consumer.   

• Develop specialized professional development opportunities for faculty and staff 

members that will provide training and support for recruitment and retention 

efforts.   

• Utilize assessment tools that will provide ongoing feedback from the current 

student body regarding academic and cultural experiences while at Northwestern.   

• Maintain federal grant programs that support student achievement.   

• Develop tools and trainings for current students to encourage and empower them 

to take a more active role in their advisement and education.   
   

Goal 2: Provide a sustainable, user-friendly, and aesthetically pleasing campus 
environment.   

• Develop a system for the evaluation of existing facilities and generate a set of 

priorities to assist in guiding existing facility upgrades (e.g., Herod Hall, campus 

mall, residential facilities), and identifying new construction goals and projects.   

• Develop a system for collecting data on student preferences and needs related to 

facilities to inform recruitment and retention efforts.   
   

Goal 3: Design and implement a consumer-oriented branding initiative that will 
engage both traditional marketing strategies and social media channels. • 
Develop targeted messages to ensure prospective students and parents know of the 
educational opportunities available at the university.   

• Develop a program focused on deriving desired word-of-mouth consumer 

communication.   

• Develop a program for informing and educating university employees on 

strategic selling points derived from branding and marketing campaigns.   

• Develop a system of evaluation and measurement to discern the effectiveness of 

specific marketing and branding efforts.   
 

   

Strategic Direction 3   

Northwestern will develop policies and practices that foster a university-wide 

culture of excellence, accountability, and collaboration.   
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Goal 1: Review and update where necessary processes across campus that impact 
students, faculty and staff to ensure cost effectiveness and efficiency.   

• Review and improve where necessary the processes for travel requests, facility 

work orders, purchasing and other administrative operations.   

• Upgrade administrative management software.   

• Upgrade and fully utilize the degree audit software available through the Registry 

Office.   

• Upgrade software and improve staff knowledge concerning automatic packaging 

of student financial aid and scholarship awards.   
   

FY17 Since January 2017, the OSP has reviewed and revised the Institutional 

Review Board (IRB) and grant stipend program policies and procedures and 

created clearly defined protocols for each. In addition, the OSP has developed 

procedures for the Grants Oversight Committee and IRB to conduct reviews and 

gather signatures via shared folders/emailed PDF documents rather than printing 

each proposal, a substantial cost and environmental savings. Lastly, the OSP is 

working with the IT department to create auto-fill forms that can be submitted 

electronically from Blackboard to the OSP Director. The IACUC (Institutional 

Animal Care and Use Committee) policies and procedures are under review.    

   

FY18 The OSP continues to improve the processes for processing paperwork as 

needed to be as efficient as possible. The IRB application is available on the 

nwosu.edu website as an auto-fill form and attachments can be added to the form. 

The IACUC policies and procedures are still under review.     

   

FY19 The OSP continues to improve efficiency. All IRB and Grant Oversight 

Committee reviews and signatures are conducted via shared folders. Since 2017, the 

electronic IRB reviews alone have saved an estimated 1,120 pages using a 

conservative estimate of ten pages per application. Because this annual report 

requires six printed copies in addition to the electronic version, graphics and other 

costly printing features are minimal.    
   

FY20 The OSP continues to improve efficiency and utilize electronic files and 

signatures on all documents less those requiring original signatures for legal 

purposes or by request of the outside agency.    
  

FY21   Ongoing.  
  

FY22 Ongoing.  
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Goal 2: Review and revise as needed all internal communication protocols and 
vehicles to ensure reliable, timely, and consistent sharing of information across 
all campus constituencies.   

• Implement a dedicated vehicle for presidential level communications.   

• Work closely with campus media and the Northwestern Foundation and Alumni 

Association to ensure maximum distribution of information.   

• Make available opportunities for constituencies to offer feedback and provide 

institutional response as appropriate.   
   

FY17 The OSP is pro-active in sharing information regarding grants, policies and 

procedures, and offers a reminder service to faculty and staff for grant deadlines 

and related services. The OSP also offers technical assistance with grant proposals 

and online submissions and maintains an “open door” policy to support the efforts 

of faculty, staff, and our community partners. Beginning on October 2017, The 

OSP Director will offer Institutional Review Board training for students in courses 

preparing research proposals that must go through the IRB approval process. The 

trainings are an effort to communicate IRB requirements and streamline the process 

for students, faculty, the OSP, and the IRB (Institutional Review Board) members.     

   

FY18 These efforts are ongoing indefinitely. During FY18, the OSP offered IRB 

trainings to the psychology and science students on the Alva and Enid campuses 

with all access via ITV by request. Attendees included five faculty members and 

thirty students. Additional sessions are scheduled for the fall of 2018. The IRB 

trainings are offered each semester and by request.    

   

FY19 Five IRB trainings were requested by advisors. Attendees were five faculty 

members and ~42 students who attended in person and via ITV. The OSP director 

also met with two student groups for individual assistance. An IRB Workshop was 

added this year as an additional option to assist researchers with completing their 

IRB applications.    
   

FY20 The OSP always welcomes input from faculty, staff, and students. 

Input/requests have included offering IRB training/workshops via Zoom and adding 

an IRB proposal template specifically for Action Research Project students. The 

OSP will update all areas of the website in FY21. In FY20, the OSP Director 

offered IRB training to 49 undergraduate and graduate students for five faculty 

advisors. The OSP gave a program overview at the 8-16-10 Faculty Orientation.   
  

FY21 The OSP website was updated in FY21. Covid 19 hindered many student 

research projects, so the number of students who attended IRB training was down 

to 14. The OSP worked with the Division of Education to create an IRB proposal 

template for Action Research Project students. Due to faculty input, the OSP will 

create IRB proposal templates for the Sports Marketing Class and assist in 

reviewing the IRB protocols for the Department of Psychology students in FY22.  
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FY22 OSP website updates are ongoing. The Sports Marketing Class IRB proposal 

template was implemented. Six IRB trainings, workshops, and an “open door” 

office session served 48 students and three faculty members. The OSP director also 

presented an OSP overview and grants Q&A session for the Fine Arts Department.   
  

Goal 3: Conduct an assessment of health and wellness supporting resources 
for faculty, staff, and students and initiate new protocols as needed. • Promote 
wellness education and activities through partnership with health insurance 
provider.   

• Target activities for health and wellness program at additional locations.   

• Work with University food service partner to provide nutritional product 

information and provide healthy meal options for students and employees. • 

Continue to support and review expansion opportunities for student intramural 

activities.   
   

Goal 4: Develop manager and staff training programs that will enhance 
individual performance and satisfaction as well as support collaboration across 
divisions and departments.   

• Identify training opportunities for faculty and staff that can be provided through a 

variety of delivery mechanisms to promote professional development and 

enhance work skills.   

• Support efforts for new faculty and staff orientation programs as well as 

advanced training for experienced supervisors.   
   

Goal 5: Develop a plan to promote environmental sustainability, collaborating 
with the local community to promote green practices.   

• Continue support of the student group CORE and employees participating in 

green initiatives and awareness.  

• Work with the cities of Alva, Enid, and Woodward to participate in recycling 

opportunities.  

• Review and implement energy cost-savings opportunities across all campus 

buildings and facilities.  

• Evaluate alternative choices for student lab printing of materials, assignments, 

and papers.  

• Evaluate employee options for creating documents electronically in an effort to 

reduce printing costs.  

FY17 The new (January 2017) OSP Director is transferring 99% of the OSP files to 

e-files with a back-up drive and supports all University efforts to “reduce, reuse, 

and recycle.” The OSP office also has arrangements to recycle aluminum, plastic, 

and printer ink cartridges that are donated to a regional recycling program. The 

Director is an active member of CORE.   
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FY18 The transition to e-files continues. All IRB and Grant Oversight Committee 

applications, request for edits and reviews, and approvals and signatures are done 

electronically. Formal recycling efforts are still underway but not cost-effective for 

our area at this time. The Director personally arranges recycling for all aluminum, 

plastic, printer ink cartridges, and paper and makes a conscious effort to reduce use, 

reuse, and recycle wherever possible.     

FY19 Research into recycling opportunities have not been successful. Most 

recycling efforts, especially in a rural location, are not cost-effective for recyclers, 

but research into options will continue. The Director personally arranges recycling 

for all aluminum, plastic, printer ink cartridges, and paper and makes a conscious 

effort to reduce use, reuse, and recycle wherever possible. The OSP office is 

paperless with few exceptions. Old files are being sorted and scanned or shredded. 

All IRB applications, Proposal Planning Sheets, and 95% of all grant paperwork is 

electronic. Since 2017, the electronic IRBs alone have saved over 1,000 pieces of 

copy paper and ink/toner expenses. The ink cartridges are saved and sent to the 

Northwest Center for Behavioral Health’s Regional Prevention (drug & alcohol) 

Coordinator Center. The Center sells the cartridges to the recycler via free shipping 

and uses the money to pay the expenses for their teen volunteers who assist with 

alcohol compliance checks in northwest Oklahoma and the Panhandle.    

FY20 Recycling and resource use reduction is ongoing. Approximately 90 printer 

ink cartridges were recycled this year. The OSP annual report is sent out in 

electronic format with an average of only six requests per year for a printed copy.    
  

FY21 Recycling and resource use reduction is ongoing. Approximately 267 printer 

ink cartridges were recycled this year. The OSP annual report is sent out in 

electronic format with an average of only six requests per year for a printed copy.  

Research is ongoing to add additional recycling programs. Old OSP files continue to 

be sorted and scanned or shredded.   
  

FY22 Recycling and resource use reduction is ongoing. Printer ink cartridges were 

held this year because of a required change in recyclers. The previous recycler 

increased protocols and requirements that made the program ineffective. The OSP 

director worked directly with the closest Staples office supply store to continue 

recycling and took 56 cartridges at once as a courtesy. They typically limit 

cartridge drops off to ten per month. The OSP annual report is sent out in 

electronic format with an average of only six requests per year for a printed copy.  

Research is ongoing to add additional recycling programs. Old OSP files continue 

to be sorted and scanned or shredded. Other efforts are ongoing.   
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Strategic Direction 4   

Northwestern will forge strategic partnerships that advance the mission of the 

University.   

Goal 1: Implement a comprehensive development program that secures private 
investment to support important initiatives and areas of most critical need.   

• Successfully advance the three core objectives of the Imagine Northwestern 

campaign through meeting the stated financial goals.  

• Develop initiatives to expand the base of donors who regularly support the 

University.  

• Implement giving programs that provide unrestricted funding that can be directed 

to areas of critical importance.  

• Raise the awareness of the importance of private giving and develop a culture of 

philanthropy with alumni, employees, students and friends.  

 

Goal 2: Serve as a regional center for thought and action to improve the quality 
of life for northwest Oklahoma and the surrounding area.   

• Develop a strategy to promote the University as the regional center for 

educational services, the arts and athletic competition.  

• Serve as an active participant in organizations that promote the growth and 

development of the region and seek leadership roles as necessary.  

• Successfully begin and grow the Doctor of Nursing Practice program to improve 

access to health care providers, especially in rural and underserved areas.  

FY17 The OSP actively researches grant opportunities for Northwestern and 

community partners, especially those grants with a rural improvement priority, to 

support this goal and the OSP Director is an active volunteer with several 

organizations in the area.    

FY18 Ongoing.   

FY19 Ongoing and provide IRB training/guidance to the DNP program.   

FY20 Ongoing.   

FY21 Ongoing  

FY22 Ongoing  

Goal 3: Strengthen mutually beneficial partnerships with business and industry.   

• Develop and implement a reporting structure to target and engage business and 

industry entities across Oklahoma.  

• Strengthen ties with business and industry through the active engagement of 

alumni working at selected companies.  
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• Increase employment opportunities for graduates and internship possibilities for 

current students.  

• Increase the number of academic program-specific industry advisory councils.  

Goal 4: Working with alumni and friends, demonstrate to policymakers the value 
of the University to the people of Oklahoma.   

• Implement a communications strategy to better inform alumni and friends of 

trending topics that affect the mission of the University.  

• Build a network of private sector advocates that can assist the University in its 

state legislative efforts.  

• Support efforts to engage state Congressional leaders and federal agencies in  

 order to expand funding of grants and sponsored programs.  
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
Board of Regents 
Regional University System of Oklahoma 
Northwestern Oklahoma State University 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northwestern 
Oklahoma State University (the University), a department of the Regional 
University System of Oklahoma (RUSO), which is a component unit of the State of 
Oklahoma, and its discretely presented component unit, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2022 and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective position, of the University, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report.  We are required to be independent of the 
University and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
 
Emphasis of a Matter 
As discussed in Note A, the financial statements of the University are intended to 
present the financial position, the changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows of only that portion of RUSO that is attributable to the 
transactions of the University. They do not purport to, and do not present fairly the 
financial position of RUSO as of June 30, 2022, the changes in its financial 
position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
The University’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the 
University’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial 
statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly 
thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinions.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.  
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:  
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control.  
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the University’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required 
supplementary information listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information  
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements.  The schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  In our opinion, the statement of modernization costs-uncompleted, financial 
data schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 31, 2022 on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Audit Standards in considering Northwestern Oklahoma State University’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 
October 31, 2022
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OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Northwestern Oklahoma State University is pleased to present its financial statements for fiscal 
year 2022, with selected comparative information for fiscal year 2021.  Management’s discussion 
and analysis is designed to focus on current activities, resulting changes, and current known facts, 
so it should be read in conjunction with the University’s financial statements and footnotes.  There 
are three financial statements presented:  the Statement of Net Position; the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows.  All dollar 
amounts in the tables in this MD&A are presented in millions of dollars.  This discussion and 
analysis of the University’s financial statements provides an overview of its financial activities for 
the year.  Accounting standards require that financial statements for the Northwestern Oklahoma 
State University Foundation, Inc. be reported with the University’s report. 
 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents the assets (current and non-current), deferred outflows 
or resources, liabilities (current and noncurrent), deferred inflows of resources, and net position 
as of the end of the fiscal year.  The purpose of this statement is to give readers of the financial 
statements a fiscal snapshot of Northwestern Oklahoma State University.  
 
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is 
consistent with the accounting used by private sector institutions.  Readers of the Statement of 
Net Position can determine the assets available to continue the operations of the institution.  
Amounts owed to vendors and lending institutions can also be determined.  Finally, the Statement 
of Net Position provides a picture of the net position and its availability for expenditure by the 
institution. 
 
Net position – the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources – is one way to measure the University’s health, or position.  
Over time, increases or decreases in net position are an indicator of whether or not the 
University’s financial health is improving.  Non-financial factors are also important to consider, 
including student enrollment and condition of campus buildings.  Net position is divided into three 
categories.  The first category, Net Investment in Capital Assets, provides information on the 
institution’s property, plant, and equipment.  The next category, Restricted Net Position-
Expendable, is divided into two categories, Scholarship and Capital Project and Debt Service.  
This portion of net position is available for expenditure by the institution but must be spent for 
purposes as determined by donors and/or external entities that have placed time or purpose 
restrictions on the use of the assets.  The final category is Unrestricted Net Position.  Unrestricted 
assets are available to the institution for any lawful purpose of the institution. 
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION--Continued 
 
A Condensed Statement of Net Position is prepared from the University’s Statement of Net 
Position and summarizes the assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows and net position 
as of June 30, 2022, compared to the year ending June 30, 2021. 
 
 
ANALYSIS OF NET POSITION 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
(In Millions)

Increase 
2022 2021 (Decrease)

ASSETS
Current assets $ 12.4 $ 11.3 $ 1.1              

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets, net of depreciation 25.0 24.1 0.9              
Other assets 3.8 3.1 0.7              

TOTAL ASSETS 41.2 38.5 2.7              

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 2.1 3.0 (0.9)            
Noncurrent liabilities 4.4 4.8 (0.4)            

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6.5 7.8 (1.3)            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 0.9 0.1 0.8              

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 20.3 18.7 1.6              
Restricted 4.0 3.3 0.7              
Unrestricted 10.3 8.6 1.7              

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 34.6 $ 30.6 $ 4.0              

June 30
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ANALYSIS OF NET POSITION 2022--Continued 
 
Assets are presented net of depreciation.  Total assets increased by $2,741,761 with the largest 
change occurring in capital assets, net of depreciation.  Cash increased by $1,760,347 and 
Capital Assets increase $959,749 as renovations to Ryerson Hall were completed. Also 
noteworthy is a reduction of $801,551 in accounts payable.  
 
Liabilities decreased $1,306,255 driven primarily by a decrease in accounts payable of 
$839,719.  There was a drop in the University’s current portion of noncurrent liabilities of almost 
$.4 million due to a reduction in debt. A decrease in current liabilities of $.9 million contributed to 
an overall $1,306,255 million decrease in total liabilities. Net position increased by $4.0 million 
consisting primarily from an increase in net investment in capital assets. 
 
The following graph represents how the University’s net position is split between capital assets, 
unrestricted, and restricted position.  
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the University’s 
results of operations for the year and the effect on net position.  Operating revenues and expenses 
are generated from “exchange” transactions that arise in the course of normal activity for the 
organization.  The comparison of operating revenues to operating expenses is an important measure 
of an institution’s fiscal stability.  Public institutions will normally not have an excess of operating 
revenues over operating expenses because state appropriations are considered nonoperating 
revenues under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(In Millions)

Increase
2022 2021 (Decrease)

OPERATING REVENUE
Student Tuition and Fees (net of scholarship

allowance of $7.5 and $7.3) $ 8.4           $ 9.5           $ (1.1)           
Federal, State, and Local Grants/Contracts 7.5           8.4           (0.9)           
Auxiliary 4.9           3.7           1.2            
Other 0.2           0.3           (0.1)           

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 21.0         21.9         (0.9)           

OPERATING EXPENSES
Compensation and Employee Benefits 18.3         17.8         0.5            
Contractual Services 4.3           2.2           2.1            
Supplies and Materials 0.3           1.5           (1.2)           
Depreciation 2.0           1.9           0.1            
Utilities 1.0           0.6           0.4            
Communication Expense 0.1           0.8           (0.7)           
Scholarships and Fellowships 6.9           7.1           (0.2)           
Other Operating Expense 6.0           2.0           4.0            

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENESE 38.9         33.9         5.0            
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (17.9)       (12.0)       (5.9)           

NONOPERATING REVENUE (LOSS)
State Appropriations 8.5           7.7           0.8            
Federal and State Grants/Contracts 11.2         4.6           6.6            
Gifts 0.6           0.6           -            
Investment Income 0.5           0.3           0.2            
Interest Expense (0.2)         (0.2)         -            

NET NONOPERATING REVENUE 20.6         13.0         7.6            
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OTHER REVENUE/EXPENSE 2.7           1.0           1.7                        

OTHER REVENUE/EXPENSE 1.4           1.4           -            

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 4.1           2.4           1.7            

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 30.5         28.2         2.3            

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $ 34.6         $ 30.6         $ 4.0            

Years Ended June 30
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REVENUES 2022 
 
Operating revenues decreases by $824,087 primarily due to a drop in enrollment. There was no 
increase to tuition or mandatory fees for FY22. CARES funding helped to restore lost revenue in 
the auxiliary accounts of housing and food service.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26%

28%

32%

13%

1%

Total Revenue FY 21
(In Millions)

State Appropiations

Grants & Contracts

Tuition & Fees

Auxiliary

Other



Northwestern Oklahoma State University 
A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

vi 

REVENUES 2022-Continued 
 

 
 
 
EXPENSES 2022 
 
Operating expenses for the year were $38.9 million. This is an increase of $5.0 million from fiscal 
year 2021. This is reflected primarily in CARES scholarships and institutional expenses from this 
funding. Compensation dropped as there were fewer employees and several unfilled positions 
during the year. There was an increase of $864,045 for supplies and materials and contractual 
services as work began on the remodel of Cunningham Hall. Overall net position for the University 
increased $4.1 million for FY22. 
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The following graph represents the percentages of expenses for the fiscal year 2022 compared 
to fiscal year 2021. Again, overall percentages are very similar. 
 
 
EXPENSES 2022-Continued 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 
The final statement presented by Northwestern Oklahoma State University is the Statement of 
Cash Flows.  The primary purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows is to provide information about 
the cash receipts and disbursements of an entity during a period.  This statement also aids in the 

assessment of an entity’s ability to generate future net cash flows, ability to meet obligations as they 
come due, and needs for external financing.  The statement is divided into five parts. 
 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(In Millions)

Increase
2022 2021 (Decrease)

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):
Operating activities $ (16.3)                 $ (11.0)                 $ (5.3)            
Noncapital financing activities 20.2                  12.9                  7.3              
Investing activities 0.5                    0.3                    0.2              
Capital and related financing activities (2.0)                   0.4                    (2.4)            

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 2.4                    2.6                    (0.2)            
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 12.3                  9.7                    2.6              
CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 14.7                  $ 12.3                  $ 2.4              

Years Ended June 30

 
 
The first section presents operating cash flows and shows the net cash used by the operating 
activities of the institution.  The second section reflects cash flows from noncapital financing 
activities.  This section reflects the cash received and spent for nonoperating, noninvesting, and 
noncapital financing purposes.  The third section shows the cash flows from investing activities 
and shows the purchase, proceeds, and interest received from investing activities.  The fourth 
section presents cash flows from capital and related financing activities.  This section deals with 
the cash used for the acquisition and construction of capital and related items.  The fifth section 
reconciles the net cash used to the operating income or loss reflected on the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position. 
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ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 
 
Northwestern Oklahoma State University continues to be a leading economic engine for the 
northwest sector of Oklahoma.  Northwestern, like most higher education institutions, continues 
to rebound from the COVID-19 pandemic impact of enrollment declines.  Additionally, Federal 
funds allowed for technology infrastructure upgrades. 
 
In preparing the FY22 budget, great care was given to align expenses with anticipated enrollment 
declines. Continuing the on-going evaluation practice to reduce expenses, vacant positions were 
evaluated before job postings were approved.  FY22 saw a return to travel for in-person meetings 
and professional development opportunities for faculty and staff.   
 
The “Enrollment Champions Committee” formed in FY21 continues to meets regularly to review 
ongoing recruitment and retention efforts, policies, and events that promote the university’s 
academic programs.  The University is seeing positive results of these efforts as more returning 
students are enrolling earlier as reflected in slightly increased fall 2022 enrollment numbers. 
 
During FY22, Northwestern completed renovation work on Ryerson Hall, allowing this project to 
be capitalized.  Work continued on upgrading and replacing much of the dated concrete entrance 
to the main campus and around the Student Center.  Renovation began on a new Hall of Fame 
room in Percefull Fieldhouse, and the campus community saw an old building used for storage 
demolished to make room for an outdoor classroom.  The most significant capital improvement 
project started was the renovation of Cunningham Hall, a three-story female dormitory built in the 
1960’s.  This project is providing new paint, carpet, ceiling tiles, showers, HVAC, and bathroom 
upgrades.  All of the built-in furniture was removed and students will enjoy new, portable furniture.   
 
The Northwestern Oklahoma State University Foundation, Inc., plays a critical role in supporting 
the University and its mission. New contributions and endowments continue to be secured to 
provide support for the operations of Northwestern.  Even though FY22 saw a drop in the market 
and many of their investments, fund raising efforts continue for both new scholarships as well as 
new endowed accounts. 
 
During FY22, Northwestern distributed the final portion of the student CARES funding. A 
significant portion of the institutional funding was spent to help upgrade campus and classroom 
technology.  This included upgrading all campus buildings in Alva, Enid, and Woodward with  
 
enhanced wireless connections and installing new fiber infrastructure on the Alva campus.  
Northwestern received a CARES debt relief grant in the amount of $558,786 designed to pay 
university charges still owed on student accounts.  This benefited students with balances and 
allowed them to enroll and continue working towards their undergraduate degree.  Northwestern 
also used institutional CARES funding to replace lost revenue.  These amounts claimed in FY22 
for prior-year losses included $1,056,182 for spring and $109,336 for summer. 
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Leadership at Northwestern Oklahoma State University continues to be optimistic about the 
future. June 30, 2022, saw the retirement of President Janet Cunningham after a 40-year career 
in higher education and 16 years as NWOSU President.  Dr. Bo Hannaford, an Alva native and 
NWOSU graduate, was appointed by the RUSO Board of Regents to lead Northwestern.  A new 
strategic plan will be unveiled in FY23, and work will begin to prepare for the spring 2024 10-year 
accreditation visit by the Higher Learning Commission.  With state revenue projections stable and 
inflation starting to decline, Northwestern is optimistic about the future of the economy and the 
ability to grow enrollment. 
 
 



Assets

Current Assets  

Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,886,003    $ 475,420         

Accounts Receivable, net 1,068,655      -                    

Receivable from state agencies 449,285         -                    

Interest and other receivables 5,477             -                    

Inventories 11,007           -                    

Total Current Assets 12,420,427    475,420         

Noncurrent Assets 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,827,456 -                    

Investments -                    33,224,416    

Prepaid Insurance -                    19,188           

Other assets -                    299,690         

Land and mineral rights -                    2,851,124      

Capital assets, net 25,020,269    141,731         

Total Noncurrent Assets 28,847,725    36,536,149    

Total Assets $ 41,268,152    $ 37,011,569    

Deferred Outflows Of Resources

Deferred charge on ODFA lease restructure -                    -                    

Total Deferred Outflows Of Resources $ -                    $ -                    

(Continued)

Northwestern Oklahoma State University

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

University Unit

Component

A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma

See Notes to the Financial Statements.  4



Liabilities and Net Position

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 162,670 $ 54,007           

Accrued payroll 287,286 -                    

Unearned revenue 585,494 -                    

Deposits held in custody for others 55,125           -                    

Current portion of noncurrent liabilities 1,021,427 -                    

Total Current Liabilities 2,112,002      54,007           

Noncurrent Liabilities

Accrued compensated absences 133,020         -                    

ODFA Master Lease Program 1,276,211      -                    

Lease obligation payable to a state agency 2,830,638      -                    

Other noncurrent liabilities 198,510         -                    

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,438,379 -                    

Total Liabilities $ 6,550,381      $ 54,007           

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred Inflow 91,856 -                    

Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 91,856           $ -                    

Net Position

  Net Investment in Capital Assets 20,336,760    -                    

Restricted:

Nonexpendable: -                    -                    

Grants, bequests and contributions -                    37,098,141    

Expendable:

Scholarships, instruction and other 697,066         -                    

Capital projects and debt service 3,250,450      -                    

Board-designated endowment -                    -                    

Unrestricted 10,341,639    (140,579)        

Total Net Position $ 34,625,915    $ 36,957,562    

University Unit

(Continued)

Northwestern Oklahoma State University
A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Component

See Notes to the Financial Statements.  5



 

Operating Revenues
Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances of $7,565,599 $ 8,402,007 $ -                     
Federal and state grants and contracts 7,533,056 -                     
Housing and food service, net of scholarship discounts and allowances of $204,500 4,882,978 -                     
Contributions -                     4,072,389      
Other operating revenues 236,550 125,326         

Total Operating Revenues 21,054,591    4,197,715      

Operating Expenses
Compensation and employee benefits 18,313,006    -                     
Contractual services 4,281,962 -                     
Supplies and materials 255,728 -                     
Depreciation 2,001,793 -                     
Utilities 1,007,956 -                     
Communication expense 117,119 -                     
Scholarships and fellowships 6,931,351 903,411         
Other operating expenses 6,010,415 2,266,946      

Total Operating Expenses 38,919,330    3,170,357      

Operating Income (Loss) (17,864,739)   1,027,358      

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
State appropriations 8,470,293      -                     
Federal and state grants and contracts 11,142,837    -                     
Gifts 557,165         -                     
Investment income 508,258         (2,981,269)     
Interest expense (185,535)        -                     

Net Nonoperating Revenue 20,493,018    (2,981,269)     

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains And Losses 2,628,279      (1,953,911)     

Private gifts for capital assets -                     -                     
State appropriations restricted for capital purposes 1,216,647      -                     
OCIA on-behalf state appropriations 148,678         -                     
Capital assets earned 66,170           -                     

Change In Net Position 4,059,774      (1,953,911)     

Net Position, Beginning of Year 30,566,141 38,911,473    

Net Position, End of Year $ 34,625,915    $ 36,957,562    

Northwestern Oklahoma State University

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, And Changes In Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

University Unit
Component

A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma

See Notes to the Financial Statements.  6



Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Tuition and fees $ 9,215,493      

Grants and contracts 7,362,480      

Auxiliary enterprise charges and other operating receipts 5,119,528      

Payments to employees for salaries and benefits (18,443,607)   

Payment to suppliers (19,441,305)   

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (16,187,411)   

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

State appropriations 8,470,293      

Nonoperating grants 11,142,837    

Direct student loans received 5,552,202      

Direct student loan payments (5,552,202)     

Gifts for other than capital purposes 557,165         

Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Investing Activities 20,170,295    

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Interest income received 508,258         

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 508,258         

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Cash paid for capital assets (2,967,454)     

Gift for capital assets 5,911             

Capital appropriations received 1,216,647      

Interest paid on capital debt and leases (49,417)          

Proceeds from issuance of debt -                    

Repayment of capital debt and leases (281,700)        

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (2,076,013)     

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,415,129      

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 12,298,329    

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 14,713,459    

(Continued)

Northwestern Oklahoma State University

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma

See Notes to the Financial Statements.  7



Reconciliation of Operating Loss to

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Operating Loss $ (17,864,739)   

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss

to net cash used in operating activities

Depreciation expense 2,001,793      

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 630,975         

Inventories 2,945             

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (915,432)        

Unearned revenue (12,090)          

Student and other deposits 24,025           

Compensated absences (54,888)          
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities $ (16,187,411)   

Noncash Investing, Noncapital Financial

and Capital and Related Financing Activities

Interest on capital debt paid by state
agency on behalf of the University $ 148,678         

Donated Capital assets reported as
unearned capital assets $ 66,170           

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents

to Statement  of Net Position

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,886,003    

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,827,456      
Total Cash And Cash Equivalents $ 14,713,459    

Northwestern Oklahoma State University

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

(Continued)

A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma

See Notes to the Financial Statements.  8
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Note A--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of Organization 
 
Northwestern Oklahoma State University (the University) is a regional University operating 
under the jurisdiction of the Regional University System of Oklahoma (RUSO or the System) 
and the Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education. 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
Northwestern Oklahoma State University is one of six institutions of higher education in 
Oklahoma that comprise part of the System, which in tum is part of the Higher Education 
component unit of the State of Oklahoma. 
 
The Board of Regents has constitutional authority to govern, control and manage the System, 
which consist of six institutions and an administrative office.  This authority includes but is 
not limited to the power to designate management, the ability to significantly influence 
operations, acquire and take title to real and personal property in its name, appoint or hire all 
necessary officers, supervisors, instructors, and employees for member institutions. 
 
The University is considered a department of the System for financial reporting purposes and 
is included in the System’s financial reporting entity. 
 
Component Unit 
 
Northwestern Oklahoma State University Foundation, Inc. (the University Foundation) and 
Alumni Association (the Association) are combined and considered a component unit of the 
University under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The 
Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39 Determining Whether 
Certain Organizations Are Component Units-An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and 
GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an Amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and No. 34, and their financial statements are discretely presented with 
the financial statements of the University.  The University Foundation is a perpetual 
corporation formed under the laws of the State of Oklahoma for charitable, benevolent, 
educational, and scientific purposes.  Its specific purpose is to benefit the University through 
charitable actions and activities.  Its activities are guided by a Board of Trustees, which 
receives no compensation for their activities.  The Association is an unincorporated 
association formed for the benefit of the Alumni of Northwestern Oklahoma State University 
as a whole.  Its specific purpose is to provide alumni with information about University related 
organizations and activities.  Its activities are guided by a Board of Directors who receives 
no compensation for their activities.  In September 1986, the two organizations adopted an 
operating agreement for their mutual benefit.
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Note A--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Component Unit (Continued) 
 
Its purpose was to avoid repetition of projects and to pool the resources of the two 
organizations.  The two organizations remained separate entities, each governed by its own 
board.  The president of the Association will be appointed as a trustee of the University 
Foundation.  Accounting for the funds and fund transactions is accomplished by the 
University Foundation.  The University Foundation provides financial support as needed to 
the Alumni Association.  Each year the Alumni Association Board presents a budget to the 
University Foundation Board to finance its operations. 
 
Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The University’s financial statements are presented in accordance with the requirements of 
GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statement and Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis - for State and Local Governments, and GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial 
Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and 
Universities.  Under GASB Statements No. 34 and 35, the University is required to present a 
statement of net position classified between current and noncurrent assets and liabilities and 
deferred outflows and inflows; a statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position, with separate presentation for operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses; 
and a statement of cash flows using the direct method. 
 
Basis of Accounting  
 
For financial reporting purposes, the University is considered a department of a special-
purpose government engaged only in business-type activities.  Accordingly, the University’s 
financial statements have been presented using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when 
earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred.  All significant 
intra-agency transactions have been eliminated. 
 
Cash Equivalents 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the University considers all highly liquid 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  Funds 
invested through the State Treasurer’s Cash Management Program are considered cash 
equivalents. 
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Note A--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Investments 
 
The University accounts for its investments at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement 
No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External 
Investment Pools.  Changes in unrealized gain (loss) on the carrying value of investments 
are reported as a component of investment income in the statement of revenues, expenses, 
and changes in net position.  At June 30, 2022, all of the University’s investments were 
considered cash equivalents. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to students and auxiliary enterprise 
services provided to students, faculty, and staff, the majority of each residing in the State of 
Oklahoma.  Accounts receivable also include amounts due from the federal government, 
state, and local governments, or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of 
allowable expenditures made pursuant to the University’s grants and contracts.  Accounts 
receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories consist of maintenance supplies and are carried at the lower of cost or market on 
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis. 
 
Restricted Cash and Investments 
 
Cash and investments that are externally restricted to make long-term student loans, or to 
purchase capital or other noncurrent assets, are classified as restricted assets in the 
statement of net position. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair market value at the date 
of donation in the case of gifts.  For equipment, the University’s capitalization policy includes 
all items with a unit cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of greater than one 
year.  Land improvements that significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the 
structure and that have a cost of $5,000 or more are capitalized.  Routine repairs and 
maintenance are charged to operating expense in the year in which the expense is incurred. 
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 
the assets, generally 40 years for buildings, 20 years for infrastructure and land 
improvements, and 5 years for library materials and equipment. 
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Note A--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Unearned Revenue 
 
Unearned revenues include amounts received for tuition and fees and certain auxiliary 
activities prior to the end of the fiscal year but related to the subsequent accounting period.  
Unearned revenues also include amounts received from grant and contract sponsors that 
have not yet been earned.  
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Employee vacation pay is accrued at year-end for financial statement purposes.  The liability 
and expense incurred are recorded at year-end as accrued compensated absences in the 
statement of net position and as a component of compensation and employee benefit 
expense in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
 
Noncurrent Liabilities 
 
Noncurrent liabilities include (1) principal amounts of revenue bonds payable, notes payable, 
and capital lease obligations with contractual maturities greater than one year; (2) estimated 
amounts for accrued compensated absences and other liabilities that will not be paid within 
the next fiscal year; and (3) other liabilities that, although payable within one year, are to be 
paid from funds that are classified as noncurrent assets. 
 
Net investment in capital assets the University’s net position is classified as follows: 
 
The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, notes, or other 
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets.  Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable 
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are also 
included in this component of net position.  To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet 
expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of net investment 
in capital assets. 
 
Restricted Net Position - Expendable 
 
Restricted expendable net position includes resources in which the University is legally or 
contractually obligated to spend resources in accordance with restrictions imposed by external 
third parties. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position 
 
Unrestricted net position represents resources derived from student tuition and fees, state 
appropriations, and sales and services of educational departments and auxiliary enterprises.   
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Note A--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
These resources are used for transactions relating to the educational and general operations 
of the University and may be used at the discretion of the governing board to meet current 
expenses for any purpose.  These resources also include auxiliary enterprises, which are 
substantially self-supporting activities that provide services for students, faculty, and staff. 
 
When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, 
the University’s policy is to first apply the expense towards restricted resources and then toward 
unrestricted resources. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The University, a department of RUSO, a political subdivision of the State of Oklahoma, is 
exempt from all federal income taxes under Section 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code, as 
amended.  However, the University may be subject to income taxes on unrelated business 
income under the Internal Revenue Code Section 5ll (a)(2)(B). 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from these 
estimates. 
 
Classification of Revenues 
 
The University has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating revenues 
according to the following criteria: 
 
Operating Revenues 
 
Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of exchange transactions; 
such as (1) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances; (2) sales 
and services of auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship discounts and allowances; and (3) 
certain federal, state, and local grants and contracts.  
 
Nonoperating Revenues 
 
Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of nonexchange 
transactions, such as gifts and contributions, and other revenue sources that are defined as 
nonoperating revenues by GASB No. 9 Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and 
Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund 
Accounting, and GASB No. 34, such as state appropriations, governmental and other pass-
through grants, and investment income. 
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Note A--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Scholarship Discounts and Allowances 
 
Student tuition and fee revenues and certain other revenues from students are reported net of 
scholarship discounts and allowances in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in 
net position.  Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between the stated charge 
for goods and services provided by the University and the amount that is paid by students and/or 
third parties making payments on the students’ behalf.  Certain governmental grants, such as Pell 
grants, and other federal, state, or nongovernmental programs, are recorded as nonoperating 
revenues in the University’s financial statements.   To the extent that revenues from such programs 
are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the University has recorded a 
scholarship discount and allowance. 
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
 
Deferred outflows are the consumption of net position by the University that is applicable to a 
future reporting period.  At June 30, 2022, the University’s deferred outflows of resources were 
comprised of deferred charges on ODFA lease restructurings.  These deferred outflows of 
resources are recognized as a component of interest expense over the remaining life of the old 
debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
Deferred inflows are the acquisition of net position by the University that is applicable to a future 
reporting period.  At June 30, 2022, the University’s deferred inflows of resources is comprised of 
a deferred gain on the restructuring of an OCIA lease. 
 
Fiduciary Funds 
 
Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for third parties and 
therefore are not available to support University programs.  The reporting focus is net position 
and changes in net position and uses accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. 
 
Agency Funds are used to report resources held by the University in a purely custodial capacity 
(assets equal liabilities).  Agency fund assets and liabilities are recognized using the accrual basis 
of accounting.  The University has one agency fund for the Oklahoma Higher Education Employee 
Interlocal Group. 
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NOTE A--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES--Continued 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
The University has evaluated subsequent events through October 31, 2022, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
 
 
Note B--Deposits and Investments 
 
Deposits 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the University’s 
deposits may not be returned or the University will not be able to recover collateral securities in 
the possession of an outside party.  Generally, the University deposits its funds with the Office of 
the State Treasurer (OST), and those funds are pooled with funds of other state agencies and then, 
in accordance with statutory limitations, are placed in financial institutions or invested as the OST 
may determine, in the state’s name.  State statutes require the OST to ensure that all state funds 
are either insured by Federal Deposit Insurance, collateralized by securities held by the cognizant 
Federal Reserve Bank, or invested in U.S. government obligations.  The OST’s responsibilities 
include receiving and collateralizing the deposit of State funds, investing State funds in 
compliance with statutory requirements, and maintaining adequate liquidity to meet the cash flow 
needs of the State and all its funds and agencies.  If the University deposits funds directly with 
financial institutions, those funds must be insured by Federal Deposit Insurance or 
collateralized by securities held by the cognizant Federal Reserve Bank in the University’s 
name. 
 
There is $13,245,034 in cash and cash equivalents on deposit with the State Treasurer as of June 
30, 2022, of which approximately $55,125 represents amounts held in agency funds.  Of the 
$13,245,034 on deposit with the State Treasurer, $5,684,936 represents amounts held within OK 
INVEST, an internal investment pool.   State Agencies and funds that are considered to be part 
of the State’s reporting entity in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report are allowed 
to participate in OK INVEST.   Oklahoma statutes and the State Treasurer establish the primary 
objectives and guidelines governing the investment of funds in OK INVEST.  Safety, liquidity, and 
return on investment are the objectives that establish the framework for the day-to-day OK 
INVEST management of funds with an emphasis on safety of the capital and the probable income 
to be derived while also meeting the State’s daily cash flow requirements.  Guidelines in the State 
Treasurer’s Investment Policy address credit quality requirements, diversification percentages 
and the types and maturities of allowable investments.  The specifics regarding these policies can 
be found on the State Treasurer’s website at http://www.ok.gov/treasurer/.  An evaluation of the 
use and purpose of the various State Agencies and funds participation in the internal investment 
pool has determined that the amount on deposit with OK INVEST are treated as demand accounts 
and reported as cash equivalents.   For financial reporting purposes, deposits with the OST that 
are invested in OK INVEST are classified as cash equivalents. 



Northwestern Oklahoma State University 
A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

16 

Note B--Deposits and Investments (Continued) 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that during periods of rising interest rates, the yield and market value 
of the securities will tend to be lower than prevailing market rates; in periods of falling interest 
rates, the yield will tend to be higher.   
 
Credit/default risk is the risk that an issuer or guarantor of a security, or a bank or other financial 
institution that has entered into a repurchase agreement, may default on its payment obligations.  
Liquidity risk is the risk that OK INVEST will be unable to pay redemption proceeds within the 
stated time period because of unusual market conditions, an unusually high volume of redemption 
requests, or other reasons.  U.S. Government securities risk is the risk that the U.S. government 
will not provide financial support to U.S. government agencies, instrumentalities, or sponsored 
enterprises if it is not obligated to do so by law.  Various investment restrictions and limitations 
are enumerated in the State Treasurer’s Investment Policy to mitigate those risks; however, any 
interest in OK INVEST is not insured or guaranteed by the State of Oklahoma, the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation, or any other government agency. 
 
 
Note C--Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2022: 
 

 
 

Student tuition and fees $ 4,076,647      
Auxiliary enterprises and other operating activities 347,065         
Federal, state, and private grants and contracts 449,285         

4,872,997      
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (3,355,057)     

Total $ 1,517,940      
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Note D--Capital Assets 
 
Following are the changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2022: 
 

 
 
 
 

Capital Assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 1,149,042     $ -                    -                    $ -                    $ 1,149,042     
Art 133,333        -                    -                    -                    133,333        
Construction in Progress 1,050,919     1,750,329     (949,897)       -                    1,851,351     

Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated 2,333,294     1,750,329     (949,897)       -                    3,133,726     

Capital Assets, being depreciated
Land Improvements 4,763,736     215,495        -                -                    4,979,231     
Leasehold Improvements 125,631        -                -                -                    125,631        
Buildings 49,172,391   124,066        949,897        (176,083)       50,070,271   
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 6,555,373     849,465        -                (20,574)         7,384,264     
Library Materials 897,811        23,985          -                (15,112)         906,684        

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated 61,514,942   1,213,011     949,897        (211,769)       63,466,081   

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Land Improvements (3,966,782)    (224,730)       -                    -                    (4,191,512)    
Leasehold Improvements (88,620)         (8,225)           -                    -                    (96,845)         
Buildings (30,627,914)  (1,292,276)    -                    174,285        (31,745,905)  
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment (4,251,789)    (463,774)       -                    20,574          (4,694,989)    
Library Materials (852,611)       (12,788)         -                    15,112          (850,287)       

Total Accumulated Depreciation (39,787,716)  (2,001,793)    -                    209,971        (41,579,538)  

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated 21,727,226   (788,781)       949,897        (1,798)           21,886,543   

Capital Assets, Net $ 24,060,520   $ 961,547        $ -                    $ (1,798)           $ 25,020,269   

Capital Assets Summary
Capital Assets, not being depreciated $ 2,333,294     $ 1,750,329     $ (949,897)       $ -                    $ 3,133,726     
Capital Assets, being depreciated 61,514,942   1,213,011     949,897        (211,769)       63,466,081   

Total Cost of Capital Assets 63,848,236   2,963,340     -                    (211,769)       66,599,807   
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (39,787,716)  (2,001,793)    -                    209,971        (41,579,538)  

Total $ 24,060,520   $ 961,547        $ -                    $ (1,798)           $ 25,020,269   

06/30/21 Additions Deletions 06/30/22
Balance Balance

Transfers
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Note E--Long-Term Liabilities 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows: 
 

Capital Lease Obligations 
 
Oklahoma Capital Improvement Authority Lease Obligation in September 1999, the 
Oklahoma Capital Improvement Authority (OCIA) issued its OCIA Bond Issues, 1999 Series 
A, B, and C, of the total bond indebtedness, the State Regents for Higher Education allocated 
$850,000 to the University.  Concurrently with the allocation, the University entered into a 
lease agreement with OCIA, for the project being funded by the OCIA bonds.  The lease 
agreement provides for the University to make specified monthly payments to OCIA over the 
respective terms of the agreement, which is for 20 years.  The proceeds of the bonds and 
subsequent lease are to provide for capital improvements at the University. 
 
Through June 30, 2022, the University has drawn down its total allotment for expenditures 
incurred in connection with specified projects.  These expenditures have been capitalized as 
capital assets or recorded as non-capitalized operating expenses, in accordance with 
University policy.  The University has recorded a lease obligation payable to OCIA for the 
total amount of the allotment, less repayments made during the fiscal year. 
 
In 2004, the OCIA issued bond series 2004A that refunded a significant portion of the 1999A 
bonds.  The amortization of the 1999A bond issue ended in 2010.  The lease agreement will 
no longer secure the 1999A bond issue but will now act as security for the 2004A bond issue 
over the term of the lease through the year 2020.  As a result, there are two amortization 
schedules, which have been combined, related to this one lease agreement. 
 
In November 2005, the OCTA issued its OCTA Bond Issues, 2005 Series F and G, of the 
total bond indebtedness, the State Regents for Higher Education allocated $6,813,432 to the 
University.  Concurrently with the allocation, the University entered into a lease agreement 
with OCIA, which includes three projects being funded by the OCIA bonds.  The lease 
agreement provides for the University to make specified monthly payments to OCIA over the 
term of the agreement.  The projects have terms of 5 to 30 years.  The proceeds of the bonds 
and the subsequent leases are to provide for capital improvements at the University.

Capital Lease Obligations:

ODFA Master Lease $ 1,843,581      $ -                     $ (281,700)        $ 1,561,881      $ 285,670         

OCIA Lease Obligation 3,121,628      -                     -                     3,121,628      290,990         
4,965,209      -                     (281,700)        4,683,509      576,660         

Other Liabilities
Accrued Compensated Absences 566,504         511,618         (566,504)        511,618         378,597         

Unearned Capital Assets 330,851         -                     (66,170)          264,681         66,170           
897,355         511,618         (632,674)        776,299         444,767         

Total $ 5,862,564      $ 511,618         $ (914,374)        $ 5,459,808      $ 1,021,427      

Balance Balance
06/30/21 Additions Deletions 06/30/22

Due Within
One Year
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Note E--Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Capital Lease Obligations (Continued) 
 
Through June 30, 2022, the University has drawn down the total allotment for expenditures 
incurred in connection with specified projects.  These expenses have been capitalized as 
investment in capital assets in accordance with University policy.  The University has 
recorded a lease obligation payable to OCIA for the total amount of the allotment, less 
repayments made on the University’s behalf. 
 
In 2014, the OCIA restructured the 2005F series bond debt by issuing new 2014A series 
bonds.  This restructuring was a partial refunding and resulted in a gain of $186,313 between 
the remaining liability of the 2005F series and the new liability of the 2014A series.  This gain 
on restructuring was recorded as a deferred inflow of resources and is being amortized over 
a period of 18 years.  As of June 30, 2022, the deferred gain, net of amortization, was 
$91,856.  The restructured lease agreement with OCIA secures the OCIA bond indebtedness 
and any future indebtedness that might be issued to refund earlier bond issues.  The 
University’s aforementioned lease agreement with OCIA was automatically restructured to 
secure the new bond issue.  This refinancing resulted in an aggregate difference in principal 
and interest between the original lease agreement and the refinanced lease agreement of 
$448,900, which approximates the economic savings of the transaction.  The University has 
recorded a lease obligation payable to OCIA for the total amount of the allotment, less 
payments made on the University’s behalf. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2022, the State of Oklahoma made lease interest payments 
totaling $148,678 to OCIA on behalf of the University.  These on-behalf payments have been 
recorded as restricted state appropriations in the statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position. 
 
In September 2015, the ODFA issued its ODFA Master Real Property Lease Revenue Bonds, 
Tax-Exempt Series 2015D, of the total bond indebtedness, the State Regents for Higher 
Education allocated $843,000 to the University.  Concurrently with the allocation, the 
University entered into a lease agreement with ODFA for the project being funded by the 
ODFA bonds.  The lease agreement provides for the University to make specified monthly 
payments to ODFA over the respective terms of the agreement, which is through May 15, 
2030.  The proceeds of the bonds and subsequent leases are to provide for capital 
improvements to the University. 
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Note E--Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Capital Lease Obligations (Continued) 
 
In August 2016, the ODFA issued its ODFA Master Real Property Lease Revenue Bonds, 
Tax-Exempt Series 2016D, of the total bond indebtedness, the State Regents for Higher 
Education allocated $1,033,000 and $383,000 to the University.  Concurrently with the 
allocation, the University entered into a lease agreement with ODFA for the project being 
funded by the ODFA bonds.  The lease agreement provides for the University to make 
specified monthly payments to ODFA over the respective terms of the agreement, which is 
through May 15, 2031 and June 23, 2023, respectively.  The proceeds of the bonds and 
subsequent leases are to provide for capital improvements to the University. 
 
Future minimum lease payments under the University’s capital lease obligations are as 
follows: 
 

 
Note F--Retirement Plans 
 
The University’s academic and nonacademic personnel are covered by various retirement 
plans.  The plans available to University personnel include the Oklahoma Teachers’ 
Retirement System (OTRS), which is a State of Oklahoma public employee’s retirement 
system, the Supplemental Retirement Annuity (SRA), a single employer defined benefit 
pension plan available to employees hired prior to July 1, 1995, and a defined contribution 
403(b) plan.  Personnel may also be eligible to participate in the Other Post- Employment 
Insurance (OPEB) plan, as described further in Note G.  The University does not maintain the 
accounting records, hold the investments for, or administer these plans. 
 
 
 
 
 

2023 576,660         206,085         782,745         
2024 544,449         182,390         726,839         
2025 550,449         158,919         709,368         
2026 462,259         136,261         598,520         
2027 482,368         114,885         597,253         
2028-2031 2,067,324      238,045         2,305,369      

Total $ 4,683,509      $ 1,036,585      $ 5,720,094      

Principal Interest TotalYear Ending June 30,
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Note F--Retirement Plans (Continued) 
 
The accounting and financial reporting for OTRS, the SRA, and the OPEB plans are recorded 
at the reporting entity level in the Regional University System of Oklahoma financial 
statements.  That report may be obtained by writing to the Regional University System of 
Oklahoma, 3555 N.W. 58th Street, Suite 320, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73112, or by calling 
(405) 924-8817.  All payments made to these plans by the University are accounted for as 
compensation expense in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
The application of GAAP at the departmental level does not include certain liabilities incurred 
by the system as a whole.  Those liabilities relate to the participation of System employees in 
the Oklahoma Teachers Retirement System, the Supplemental Retirement Plan, and the 
Postemployment Healthcare Plan.  The accounting and reporting of these can be located in 
the financial statements of RUSO. 
 
Oklahoma Teachers’ Retirement System (OTRS). 
 
Plan Description 
 
The University contributes to the Oklahoma Teachers’ Retirement System (OTRS), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan sponsored by the State of Oklahoma.  
OTRS provides defined retirement benefits based on members’ final compensation, age and 
term of service.  In addition, the retirement program provides for benefits upon disability and 
to survivors upon the death of eligible members.  The benefit provisions are established and 
may be amended by the legislature of the State of Oklahoma.  Title 70 of the Oklahoma 
Statutes, Sections 17-101 through 116.9, as amended, assigns the authority for management 
and operations of the Plan to the Board of Trustees of OTRS.  OTRS is not required to provide 
for a cost-of-living adjustment.  OTRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be 
obtained at www.ok.gov/TRS. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
The University is required by state statute to contribute a fixed percentage of annual 
compensation on behalf of active members.  The employer contribution rate, as determined 
by state statute, was 9.5% for 2022 and 8.55% for 2021, and 2020, and was applied to annual 
compensation.  There is also an additional 7.70% for any employees’ salaries covered by 
federal funds. 
 
Employees’ contributions are also determined by state statute.  For all employees, the 
contribution rate was 7% of covered salaries and fringe benefits in 2022, 2021, and 2020.  For 
compensation in excess of $25,000, the employee’s contributions are paid directly by the 
University to the OTRS. 
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Note F--Retirement Plans (Continued) 
 
The University’s contributions to the OTRS for the year ended June 30, 2022, 2021, and 
2020 was approximately $1,255,000, $1,269,000, and $1,247,000 respectively.  These 
contributions included the University’s statutory contribution and the share of the employee’s 
contribution paid directly by the University. 
 
All payments made to these plans by the University are accounted for as compensation expense 
in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Supplemental Retirement Annuity (SRA) 
 
Plan Description 
 
The University’s SRA plan is a single employer, defined benefit pension plan administered 
by the University’s Board of Regents.  The SRA was established by the University’s Board of 
Regents to provide supplemental retirement and death benefits to University employees who 
were hired prior to July 1, 1987, or to those eligible employees’ beneficiaries.  Effective 
December 1, 2002, the SRA was amended to provide supplemental retirement and death 
benefits to University employees who were hired between July 1, 1987 and June 30, 1995.  
Effective October 1, 2003, the SRA plan was changed to eliminate the TIAA offset in the 
benefit calculation.  The authority to amend the SRA’s benefit provisions rests with the 
University’s Board of Regents.  The SRA is included in the financial report of the System, 
and does not issue separate, stand-alone financial statements. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
The authority to establish and amend eligible employees’ and employer contribution 
obligations to the SRA rests with the University’s Board of Regents.  Eligible employees are 
not required to make contributions to the SRA.  The University is required to contribute to the 
SRA an actuarially determined amount on an annual basis.  The plan currently has adopted 
a funding policy to achieve a 100 percent funding level by December 1, 2030. 
 
The University’s contributions to the SRA for the years ended June 30, 2022, 2021 and 2020, 
were approximately $300,000, $318,000, and $273,000, respectively. 
 
Defined Contribution Plan 
 
The University also has a defined contribution 403(b) plan (DCP) available to full-time 
employees.  The DCP is administered by the RUSO System, and the plan provisions are 
established and may be amended by the Board of Regents.  Plan members may make 
voluntary contributions in accordance with IRS regulations.  The University has no 
contribution requirements, the University made no contribution during the year ended June 
30, 2022, in 2021 the University contributed $25,000, and no contributions in 2020. 
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Note G--Other Post-Employment Insurance Benefits 
 
Plan Description Post - Employment Healthcare Plan 
 
The University’s postemployment healthcare plan is a single employer defined benefit plan 
administered by the System’s Board of Regents.  The plan provides medical and life insurance 
benefits to eligible retired employees until age 65.  A retiring employee must have been employed 
full-time in the system for not less than ten years immediately preceding the date of retirement; 
been a member of the OTRS during that time; and elected to receive a vested benefit under the 
provision of the Oklahoma Teachers’ Retirement System.  The retirement insurance program was 
adopted by the Board of Regents in 1985.  In March of 2008, the Retiree Medical Trust for 
Regional University System of Oklahoma was established to hold assets and pay benefits on 
behalf of the University’s postemployment healthcare plan, and was administered by The Bank 
Oklahoma, N.A.  Prior to the establishment of the trust, the insurance benefits were accounted 
for on a pay-as-you-go basis so that premiums were made from current operating funds.  The 
plan is included in the financial report of the system.  That report may be obtained by writing to 
the Regional University System of Oklahoma, 3555 N.W. 58th Street, Suite 320, Oklahoma City, 
Oklahoma 73112, or by calling (405) 924-8817. 
 
Prior to the establishment of the trust, the insurance benefits were accounted for on a pay-
as-you-go basis so that premiums were paid from current operating funds. 
 
The plan is included in the financial report of the Regional University System of Oklahoma 
reporting entity and does not issue separate, stand-alone financial statements. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
The contribution requirements of the System are established and may be amended by the 
Regional University System of Oklahoma Board of Regents.  The University is required to 
contribute the actuarially determined employer contribution, in an amount actuarially determined 
by an actuary.  The ADEC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or 
funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  In 2022, an updated valuation was not 
performed for 2022 for funding purposes. 
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Note H—Funds Held In Trust By Others 
 
Beneficial Interest in State School Land Funds 
 
The University has a beneficial interest in the “Section Thirteen Fund State Educational 
Institutions” and the “New College Fund” administered by the Commissioners of the Land 
Office as trustees for the various educational institutions entitled thereto.  The University has 
the right to receive annually 3.7% of the distributions of income produced by “Section Thirteen 
Fund State Educational Institutions” assets and 100% of the distributions of income produced 
by the University’s “New College Fund.” The University received approximately $1,013,276 
during the year ended June 30, 2022, which is restricted to the construction or acquisition of 
buildings, equipment, or other capital items. 
 
This amount is recorded as state appropriations for capital purposes in the statement of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  State law prohibits the distribution of any 
corpus of these funds to the beneficiaries.  The cost basis of the total trust reserve for the 
University, held in trust by the Commissioners of Land Office, was approximately 
$19,080,000 at June 30, 2022. 
 
Oklahoma State Regents Endowment Trust Fund 
 
In connection with the Oklahoma State Regents’ Endowment Program (the Endowment 
Program), the State of Oklahoma has matched contributions received under the Endowment 
Program.  The state match amounts, plus any retained accumulated earnings, totaled 
approximately $14,561,000 at June 30, 2022, and are invested by the Oklahoma State 
Regents on behalf of the University.  The University is entitled to receive an annual 
distribution of 5% of the market value at year end on these funds.  As legal title of the State 
Regents matching endowment funds is retained by the Oklahoma State Regents, only the 
funds available for distribution, $567,600 at June 30, 2022, have been reflected as assets in 
the statements of net position. 
 
 
Note I--Commitments and Contingencies 
 
The University conducts certain programs pursuant to various grants and contracts that are 
subject to audit by federal and state agencies.  Costs questioned as a result of these audits, 
if any, may result in refunds to these governmental agencies from various sources of the 
University. 
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Note I--Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 
 
The University participates in the Federal Direct Student Loan Program (Direct Lending Program).  
The Direct Lending Program requires the University to draw down cash from the U.S. Department 
of Education, as well as perform certain administrative functions under the Direct Lending 
Program.  For the year ended June 30, 2022, approximately $5,552,000 of Direct Lending 
Program loans was provided to University students.  During the ordinary course of business, the 
University may be subjected to various lawsuits and civil action claims.  Management believes 
that resolution of any such matters pending at June 30, 2022, will not have material adverse 
impact to the University. 
 
 
Note J--Risk Management 
 
The University is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; business interruption; errors and omission; employee injuries and 
illness; natural disasters; and employee health, life, and accident benefits.  Commercial 
insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from such matters other than torts, 
property, and workers’ compensation.  Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial 
coverage in any of the three preceding years. 
 
The University, along with other state agencies and political subdivisions, participates in the 
State of Oklahoma Risk Management Program a public entity risk pool currently operating 
as a common risk management and insurance program for its members.  The University pays 
annual premiums to the pools for tort, property, and liability insurance coverage.  The 
Oklahoma Risk Management Pool’s governing agreement specifies that the pool will be self-
sustaining though member premiums and will reinsure through commercial carriers for claims 
in excess of specified stop-loss amounts. 
 
The University also participates in the College Association of Liability Management (CALM) 
Workers’ Compensation Plan for its workers’ compensation coverage.  CALM is an Interposal 
Cooperative Act Agency that was organized to provide workers’ compensation insurance 
coverage for participating colleges and universities through Comp Source Mutual.  CALM is 
a political subdivision of the State of Oklahoma and is governed by a board of trustees elected 
from members of the participating colleges and universities. 
 
 



Northwestern Oklahoma State University 
A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

26 

Note J--Risk Management (Continued) 
 
The College also began participating, during fiscal year 2017, in the Oklahoma Higher 
Education Employee Interlocal Group Health Insurance Pool (OKHEEI).  College employees 
are provided health insurance coverage through OKHEEI.  OKHEEI is an Interlocal 
Cooperative Act Agency organized as a public entity risk pool health insurance program for 
participating Colleges and Universities in the State.  The College pays monthly health 
insurance premiums to OKHEEI for employee health insurance coverage based on the health 
coverage elected by the employee and the maximum benefit provide by the College for health 
coverage.  Amount of premiums exceeding benefits are payable by the employee.  The 
governing agreement for OKHEEI specifies that the pool will be self-sustaining through 
premiums received and with additional stop-loss coverages obtained.  If health care claims 
exceed reserves and reinsurance coverages, additional assessments may be made to 
participating Colleges and Universities.  As of June 30, 2022, additional assessments did not 
occur. 
 
 
Note K--Related Party Transactions 
 
The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation organized for the purpose of receiving and 
administering gifts for the benefit of the University.  Distributions of amounts held by the 
Foundation are subject to the approval of the Foundation’s Board of Trustees.  The Foundation’s 
primary function is to provide assistance to students of the University in the form of scholarships.   
 
Based upon an exchange of service agreement, the University provides the Foundation with 
facilities and services at no cost to the Foundation.  In exchange, the University receives 
scholarships, funds for capital improvements and other services from the Foundation.  The value 
of such services has been determined by management to be insignificant and is, therefore, not 
recorded on the financial statements as donated facilities and services. 
 
 
Note L--Northwestern Oklahoma State University Foundation, Inc. and Alumni 
Association 
 
The following are significant disclosures of Northwestern Oklahoma State University 
Foundation, Inc. and Alumni Association (collectively the Foundation): 
 
Fair Value Measurements 
 
The Foundation follows ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, which provides the 
framework for measuring fair value.  The framework provides a fair value hierarchy that 
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. 
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Note L--Northwestern Oklahoma State University Foundation, Inc. and Alumni 
Association (Continued) 
 
Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 
 
The hierarchy gives highest priority to unadjusted quotes prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs 
(Level 3 measurements). 
 
The inputs to the three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Topic 820 are described as 
follows: 
 

 Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that 
the Foundation has the ability to access. 

 Level 2 Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices 
for identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets; inputs other than quoted prices 
that are observable for the asset or liability; and inputs that are derived principally from, 
or corroborated by, observable market data by correlation to other means.  If the asset 
or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for 
substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

 Level 3 Unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement. 
 
Land and Mineral Rights 
 
Land and mineral rights consist primarily of oil & gas property and farm property donated to 
the Foundation.  Management has made attempts to revalue portions of the real property 
assets at subsequent dates.  The Foundation’s management is of the opinion that revaluation 
of all real property would not have a significant impact on the Foundation’s statements of 
financial position or changes in net position. 
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Note L--Northwestern Oklahoma State University Foundation, Inc. and Alumni 
Association (Continued) 
 
Land and Mineral Rights (Continued) 
 
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified within the fair value hierarchy 
as follows as of June 30, 2022: 
 

Endowment Disclosures 
 
The Foundation’s endowment consists of approximately 400 endowment funds established 
for a variety of purposes.  Its endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds 
and funds designated by the Trustees to function as endowments.  As required by U.S. 
GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the 
Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
Interpretation of Relevant Law 
 
The Trustees of the Foundation have chosen to preserve the fair value of the original gift as 
of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to 
the contrary.  As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies as net assets with 
donor restrictions (a) the original value of gifts donated to the endowment and (b) the original 
value of subsequent gifts to the endowment. 
 

Investments

Uninvested cash $ 3,026,187      $ -                     $ -                     $ 3,026,187      
Certificates of deposit -                     240,000         -                     240,000         
Equity Securities 11,047,186    -                     -                     11,047,186    
Exchange-traded products 10,012,304    -                     -                     10,012,304    
Corporate and other bonds -                     88,478           -                     88,478           
Mutual funds 4,429,383      -                     -                     4,429,383      
Alternative investments -                     2,715,506      1,665,372      4,380,878      

Total $ 28,515,060    $ 3,043,984      $ 1,665,372      $ 33,224,416    

Cash Value Life Insurance

Hartford Policy $ -                     $ 278,301         $ -                     $ 278,301         

Level 1

Level 1 Level 2 Total

TotalLevel 2 Level 3

Level 3
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Note L--Northwestern Oklahoma State University Foundation, Inc. and Alumni 
Association (Continued) 
 
Interpretation of Relevant Law (Continued) 
 
The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in 
restricted net assets is classified as restricted net assets until those amounts are 
appropriated for expenditure by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard of 
prudence prescribed by OK UPMIFA.  In accordance with OK UPMIFA, the Foundation 
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-
restricted endowment funds: 
 

 The duration and preservation of the fund; 
 The purposes of the Foundation and the donor-restricted endowment fund; 
 General economic conditions; 
 The possible effect of inflation and deflation; 
 The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments; 
 The investment policies of the Foundation. 

 
Return Objectives and Risk Parameters 
 
The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that 
attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by the endowment 
while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets.  Under this policy, 
as approved by the Board of Trustees, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that 
is intended to produce results which generate a dependable, increasing source of income 
and appreciation while assuming a moderate level of investment risk.  The Foundation 
expects its endowment funds, over time, to provide an average rate of return of approximately 
8% annually.  Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount. 
 
Strategies for Achieving Objectives 
 
To satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total return 
strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation 
(realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends).  The Foundation 
targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on equity-based 
investments to achieve its long-term return objectives while reducing risk to acceptable 
levels. 
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Note L--Northwestern Oklahoma State University Foundation, Inc. and Alumni 
Association (Continued) 
 
Strategies for Achieving Objectives (Continued) 
 
Spending Policy 
 
The Foundation has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year the equivalent of 
up to 5.25% of its endowment fund’s fair value as of the immediately preceding July 1.  
In establishing this policy, the Foundation considered the long-term expected return on 
its endowment.  Accordingly, over the long term, the Foundation expects the current 
spending policy to allow its endowment to grow at an average of 1.32% annually.  This 
is consistent with the Foundation’s objective to maintain the purchasing power of the 
endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide 
additional real growth through new gifts and investment return. 
 
Investment Return 
 
The Foundation includes revenues and expenses associated with investments and land & mineral 
rights when calculating its rate of return.  The rate of return was -7.87% and +19.81% for the 
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
 
Endowment net position composition as of June 30, 2022: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Without With
Donor

Donor-restricted endowment funds $ -                     $ 37,098,141    $ 37,098,141    
Board-designated endowment funds -                     -                     -                     

Total $ -                     $ 37,098,141    $ 37,098,141    

Restriction Restrictions Total
Donor
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Note L--Northwestern Oklahoma State University Foundation, Inc. and Alumni 
Association (Continued) 
 
Investment Return (Continued) 
 
Changes in endowment net position for the year ended June 30, 2022 are as follows: 
 

Related Party Transactions 
 
Based upon an exchange of service agreement, the University provides the Foundation with 
facilities and services at no cost to the Foundation.  In exchange, the University receives 
scholarships, funds for capital improvements and other services from the Foundation.  The 
value of such services has been determined by management to be insignificant and is, 
therefore, not recorded on the financial statements as donated facilities and services. 

Without With
Donor

Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 1,879,492      $ 34,249,698    $ 36,129,190    
Transfers 2,085,332      -                     2,085,332      
Investment Return (2,981,269)     -                     (2,981,269)     
Contributions 1,221,542      2,848,443      4,069,985      
Other Income 42,583           -                     42,583           
Rent Income 68,324           -                     68,324           
Appropriation of endowment assets -                     -                     -                     
for expenditures (2,316,004)     -                     (2,316,004)     

Total $ -                     $ 37,098,141    $ 37,098,141    

Total
Donor

Restrictions Restrictions
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit 

of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 

Board of Regents 
Regional University System of Oklahoma 
Northwestern Oklahoma State University 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of Northwestern Oklahoma State 
University (the University), a department of the Regional University system of 
Oklahoma (RUSO), which is a component unit of the State of Oklahoma, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2022. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
the University’s internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
University’s internal control over financial reporting.  

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a 
timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Northwestern Oklahoma State 
University's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 
October 31, 2022 
 
 
 



 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major 
Federal Program; Report on Internal Control over Compliance and 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by 
the Uniform Guidance 

 
 
Board of Regents 
Regional University System of Oklahoma 
Northwestern Oklahoma State University 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Northwestern Oklahoma State University’s (the University) 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB 
Compliance Supplement that could have direct and material effect on each of 
the University’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.  The 
University’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 
30, 2022. 
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS); the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing 
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Our 
responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section 
of our report.  
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We are required to be independent of the University and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.  Our audit does not provide a 
legal determination of the University’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to 
above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the 
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements applicable to the University’s federal programs.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and 
express an opinion on the University’s compliance based on our audit.  Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists.  The risk of not detecting 
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.  Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is 
considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the 
University’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the 
Uniform Guidance, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, 
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the University’s compliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 Obtain an understanding of the University’s internal control over compliance relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the University’s internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. 
 
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than 
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance.  Given these limitations, during our 
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to 
be material weaknesses, as defined above.  However, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose.   
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform 
Guidance 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each discretely 
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the University as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the University.  We 
issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2022, which contained unmodified opinions on 
those financial statements.  Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the 
financial statements that collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements.  The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
 
 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 
October 31, 2022 



Pass-Through

Federal Entity

Assistance Identification Provided to

Listing Number Number Subrecipients

U. S. Department of Education

Student Financial Assistance Cluster:

Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 N/A N/A $ 3,245,427        

Federal Work Study Program 84.033 N/A N/A 140,828           

Federal Supplemental Educational

   Opportunity Grants 84.007 N/A N/A 61,107             

Federal Direct Loan Programs 84.268 N/A N/A 5,552,202        

     Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster 8,999,564        

TRIO Program Cluster:

Upward Bound 84.047A N/A N/A 308,470           

Upward Bound - Math & Science 84.047M N/A N/A 272,118           

Student Support Services 84.042A N/A N/A 247,357           

Title III/LASSO N/A N/A 213,319           

     Total TRIO Program Cluster 1,041,264        

Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds:

Student Aid Portion 84.425E N/A N/A 2,738,547        

Institutional Portion 84.425F N/A N/A 2,399,992        

Strengthen Institutions Programs 84.425L N/A N/A 47,276             

Debt Relief Grant 84.425S N/A N/A 558,786           

     Total Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds 5,744,601        

Total U. S. Department of Education 15,785,429      

               Total Federal Awards $ 15,785,429      

Grantor/Program Title Expenditures

Northwestern Oklahoma State University
A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Federal Grantor/Pass Through Total Federal 
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Note A--Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the 
federal awards activity of Northwestern Oklahoma State University under programs for the federal 
government for the year ended June 30, 2022.  The information in this Schedule is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance).  Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of 
Northwestern Oklahoma State University, it is not intended to and does not present the financial 
position, changes in net position, or cash flows of Northwestern Oklahoma State University. 
 
 
Note B--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

 Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. 

 Under CFDA number 84.268, the Federal Direct Student Loan Program (“Direct Loan 
Program”), the U.S. Department of Education makes loans to enable a student or parent 
to pay the costs of the student’s attendance at a postsecondary school.  The Direct Loan 
Program enables an eligible student or parent to obtain a loan to pay for the student’s cost 
of attendance directly from the U.S. Department of Education rather than through private 
lenders.  The University administers the origination and disbursement of the loans to 
eligible students or parents.  The University is not responsible for the collection of these 
loans.   

 The University has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

 During the year ended June 30, 2022, the University did not provide any federal awards 
to subrecipients. 

 
 
Note C--Federal Direct Student Loan Program 
 
The University participates in the Federal Direct Loan Program (the Program), CFDA number 
84,268, which includes the Federal Subsidized Direct loan, the Federal Unsubsidized Direct Loan, 
the Federal Graduate Student PLUS Direct Loan, and Federal Direct Loans Parents of 
Undergraduate Students.  The Program requires the University to draw down cash; and the 
University is required to perform certain administrative functions under the Program.  Failure to 
perform such functions may require the University to reimburse the loan guarantee agencies.  The 
University is not responsible for the collection of these loans.  The value of loans made during the 
audit period are considered Federal awards expended for the audit period.
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Summary of Auditor’s Results 
 
1. The opinion expressed in the independent auditor’s report was: 
 

  Unmodified   Qualified   Adverse   Disclaimed 
 
2. The independent auditor’s report on internal control over financial reporting described: 
 

Significant deficiencies                                                                Yes         None reported 
 

Material weaknesses?                                                                 Yes         No 
 
3. Noncompliance considered material to the financial statements was 

disclosed by the audit?                                                                Yes         No 
 
4. The independent auditor’s report on internal control over compliance for major federal 

awards programs disclosed: 
 

Significant deficiencies?                                                              Yes          None reported 
 

Material weaknesses?                                                                 Yes          No 
 
5. The opinion expressed in the independent auditor’s report on compliance for major federal 

awards was: 
 

  Unmodified   Qualified   Adverse   Disclaimed 
 
6. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported  

by the Uniform Guidance?                 Yes          No 
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Summary of Auditor’s Results (Continued) 
 
7. The University’s major program were: 
 

Cluster/Program  CFDA Number 
   
Student Financial Aid Cluster   
 Federal Pell Grant  84.063 
 Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants  84.007 
 Federal Direct Loan Program  84.268 
 Federal Work Study  84.033 
 
Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund      

American Rescue Plan  84.425E 
American Rescue Plan  84.425F 
   

 
8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those terms are 

defined in the Uniform Guidance was $750,000 
 
9. The University qualified as a low-risk auditee as that term is defined in 

Uniform Guidance.    Yes   No 
 
 
Section II - Findings Required to be Reported by Government Auditing Standards 
 
None to report for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
 
Section III - Findings Required to be Reported by the Uniform Guidance 
 
None to report for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
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No matters were reportable. 
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